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Introduction
Following a year that saw a great deal of activity and progress

Proposals of National Significance – New Zealand King

for the Environmental Protection Authority (EPA), we are

Salmon’s application for nine new salmon farms was a major

pleased to report on several major achievements:

undertaking for all concerned. This year’s hearing generated

Exclusive Economic Zone (EEZ) – By the end of the
financial year we had taken on the administration of the
Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf Act (EEZ Act).

well over 10,000 pages of evidence with nearly 1,300
submissions received and 180 witnesses and submitters
heard.

Despite a very tight timeframe we were ready to go to work

Roads were a huge focus, with the continuation of the

in our new consenting, monitoring and enforcement roles by

Mackays to Peka Peka Board of Inquiry, and new Boards

1 July, the first working day after the Act came into force.

established for the Christchurch Southern Motorway and for

Hazardous Substances and New Organisms (HSNO) – In

the Peka Peka to North Ōtaki Expressway.

response to research showing only 25 percent of businesses

And in Hawke’s Bay, a major water storage scheme, known as

were fully compliant with key hazardous substance controls,

the Tukituki Catchment proposal was referred to a Board of

we worked with industry to develop a multimedia ‘Hazardous

Inquiry.

Substances Toolbox’ that makes it easier for business owners
to understand the rules and stick to them. Including links to
animated safety videos and an online calculator, the Toolbox
has been a huge success, with thousands of orders received.

In addition to these major projects, we have continued to
improve the efficiency of our everyday work – processing
permits and applications. For example, in this year we
processed 97 percent of hazardous substances applications

Across two significant reassessment projects relating to

within the statutory time frames – up from 88 percent last

organophosphates and carbamates and to antifouling paints,

year.

we reviewed a total of 148 existing approvals covering 43
active ingredients.

During the year we have developed strong relationships with
international regulators and learned from their experiences.

Emissions Trading Scheme – During the year we

Several staff members also joined us having worked for

successfully implemented changes to the Climate

overseas environmental agencies; and our benchmarking

Change Response Act, adapting our internal procedures

review has given us valuable indications of how we can

and enhancing the computer systems supporting the

further improve our operations.

New Zealand Emission Unit Register and Emissions Reporting
Tool. These changes mean we can meet more effectively
the mandated security and privacy requirements and adapt
more easily to expected policy changes.
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2013-14 will be another year of major change:
»» The new Crown Entities Act, with its emphasis on fouryear planning and on collaboration, will focus us on
longer-term and more strategic goals.
»» The first decisions under the EEZ Act will be made.
»» Legislative changes will come into effect improving the
way hazardous substances are managed by the EPA and
by WorkSafe New Zealand.
»» HSNO processes will be clarified and improved.
»» We will continue developing our processes and systems,
so that all can see how we reach decisions, and so
that we can better assist applicants for licences and
permits, Board of Inquiry submitters, other agencies and
individuals we work with, and those who simply want
information from us.
This has been the second year of operation for the EPA. Our
role is already wide ranging, encompassing environmental
regulation, administrative support for Boards of Inquiry, and
the operation of the New Zealand Emissions Trading Scheme.
Our goal is to build a high quality system of regulation that is
transparent, easy to understand, and robust. These changes
will make us better able to support the health, welfare and
prosperity of New Zealand’s environment and of its people.

Kerry Prendergast

Kevin Thompson

Chair

Deputy Chair

Environmental Protection Authority

Environmental Protection Authority

25 October 2013

25 October 2013

Rob Forlong
Chief Executive
Environmental Protection Authority
25 October 2013
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Part A

The year in review

This section outlines how our work over
the past year has contributed to
Government priorities, our outcomes and
intended results

Our vision
We will enable better future environments for New Zealanders
by being a world leading regulator.
He whetū mārama he tāngata kōkiri

Our values

we make a difference
we are totally professional

we deliver

we learn

we are easy to deal with

we are a great place to work

8 \ EPA ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013

we are well connected

The year in review
The completion of our second year of operation has given us
the opportunity to review our progress so far, and look to the
future. While the first year was one of transition, with three
agencies merging into one, the second year has had a focus
on getting the work done, often under pressures of time and
expectations of high quality decision making, and within
budget.

Alignment of our work with
Government priorities
Ministers’ expectations have been clear to the Board and staff
of the Authority. They expect us to:

Regulatory changes
During the year we worked with industry and with other
government agencies to improve health and safety
outcomes through proposals for better implementation of
the HSNO Act, including a review of its provisions. We also
worked to ensure that the regulatory framework was in
place for the Exclusive Economic Zone by 30 June 2013, as
well as sharing information to benefit the environmental
management system as a whole.
Our daily regulatory business, the consideration of
applications and the monitoring of compliance, must not
be forgotten though. ‘By the numbers’ later in this report

»» manage the Government’s finances responsibly

demonstrates what we have achieved from day-to-day.

»» help to build a more productive and competitive

These tasks are the foundation of our organisation as a

economy

regulatory authority.

»» deliver better public services within tight financial
constraints.
At the same time we are committed to working with other
government agencies, such as the Ministry of Business,
Innovation and Employment (MBIE) and the Ministry for
Primary Industries (MPI) in the natural resources sector,
with the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade (MFAT) on
environmental impact assessments for activities in Antarctica,
and to taking advantage of shared services wherever
appropriate.

Working efficiently
During the year we reviewed our business systems for
the consideration of HSNO applications. We have a very
short statutory time frame for many of our non-notified
applications. For some time the target percentage of
applications processed within the statutory time frames has
not been met. For 2012-13 the percentage of applications
that met these targets improved considerably. We also
completed a review of our document management system
and started a review of our website, updating our internal
processes where needed.

\ 9

Highlights of the year
During the year we assisted two major
Boards of Inquiry, from the start through
to the decision: New Zealand King Salmon
and Mackays to Peka Peka Expressway. Five
new applications were received,
with three further Boards of Inquiry
underway by 30 June 2013.

Reassessments of a range of
organophosphates and antifouling
paints were completed in the year – this
completed the five-year project to reassess
a range of hazardous substances. Further
reassessments are planned for future
years.

Aquatic herbicides: a reassessment of a number of
substances, to permit them to be applied onto or into water
to control aquatic pest plants, was made during the year.
The applicants included six regional councils, the Department of
Conservation and the Ministry for Primary Industries.

Biocontrols work: we approved several biological
controls on weed species during the year, including
Kordyana (yellow leaf spot fungus) as a control
on Tradescantia fluminensis (‘wandering Willie’),
and two types of weevil for the control of Berberis
darwinii (Darwin’s barberry).

Improving safety in the workplace: the announcement of the new
agency, WorkSafe New Zealand, and the HSNO Compliance
conference, ‘Working Together for a Safer Environment’ ensured
that workplace health and safety were key issues for the
organisation during the year.
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The ‘Hazardous Substances Toolbox’, a safety kit for small
businesses, was developed during the year to promote safe
working with hazardous chemicals, and delivered by the Ministry
for Business, Innovation and Employment. The project also
included a stand-alone website, and is being promoted through
press and radio outlets.

Following a review of the Māori National Network in 2012,
a new Māori Network – Te Herenga – was established,
made up of Māori resource and environmental managers,
practitioners, or experts who represent their iwi, hapū or Māori
organisation on matters of relevance to the activities and
decision making of the EPA. The Te Herenga Network was
formalised at its annual hui in July 2013.

The transitional provisions of the EEZ
Act came into effect during the year.
One transitional impact assessment
has been received by year end.

Making decisions about
hazardous substances:
improving clarity of
processes.

Working with other agencies: the greatest part of our work
involves working with other agencies to achieve the most
effective outcomes. During the year we have worked with
government departments, local councils, private industry
and non-governmental organisations, both in New Zealand
and overseas, to ensure the best knowledge base for our
decision making.

Emissions Trading Scheme: amendments to the Climate Change
Response Act 2002 led to extensive communication with a wide variety
of ETS participants and account holders, enhancements to computer
systems, and new working relationships with the New Zealand
Customs Service and the New Zealand Transport Agency.
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IMPACTS

LONG-TERM
OUTCOMES

Our outcomes framework
New Zealand’s environmental management systems are
strengthened and supported so that they can achieve the
greatest overall environmental, economic, social and
cultural benefits.

New Zealand becomes a successful low-carbon society
that is resilient to climate change impacts on its climate,
economy and lifestyle.

Reduce harm from
chemical and
biological hazards
and from hazardous
waste through more
effective management
frameworks.

Achieve better solutions
to environmental
problems by supporting
community and Māori
involvement and action,
and international
cooperation.

Improve the
implementation of the
resource management
framework to manage
environmental effects
and allocate resources
within environmental
limits.

Make timely, balanced decisions.

Raise public awareness of what is
required to comply with relevant
controls (international and domestic).

Ensure decision making is robust,
transparent and cost effective.

Monitor external enforcement
agencies’ management of the risk of
harms.

Facilitate effective participation of
Māori and other stakeholders in
decision making.
Method

Ensure that chemical and biological
approvals prevent or manage adverse
effects.
Assist enforcement agencies,
manufacturers, importers and end
users to understand HSNO controls.

»	New organisms decision making.

Oversight of compliance
and enforcement

»	Hazardous waste, ozonedepleting substances and
hazardous substances-related
decision making.

»	HSNO, ozone-depleting
substances, and hazardous
waste compliance and
enforcement.

»	Resource management
decision making.

»	Promoting awareness
and compliance.

OUTPUTS

Decision making
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Decrease New Zealand’s
net emissions of
greenhouse gases below
business-as-usual levels
in a cost-effective way.

Maximise the value of the ETS as a key
intervention to decrease New Zealand’s
net emissions of greenhouse gases by:
»	building relationships, educating
and assisting participants, account
holders and eligible entities to
enable them to receive entitlements
and meet obligations
»	managing the New Zealand Emission
Unit Register and the Scheme to
provide confidence in their security
and integrity, and user satisfaction
with the quality of the service
experience
»	using operational insights to actively
influence both the achievement
of current policy intent and the
continuous improvement of the
regulatory framework
»	participate in building internal
capability to meet increasingly
complex external threats and
opportunities.

Supporting
environmental
management

Emissions Trading
Scheme

»	Government policy, legislation
and international activities.

»	Operation of the New Zealand
Emission Unit Register.

»	Resource management advice
and support services.

»	Administration of the ETS.

What success looks like
»» We have evidence of ‘better future environments for
New Zealanders’ that we can attribute to our work
»» We have credible success stories based on scientific
evidence
»» Our stakeholders know who we are, take part in the
process and respect what we do
»» We are a trustworthy member of the community and
within the wider government sector.

Progress towards our
intended results
The most direct measure of the EPA’s performance is how
successfully we are delivering our services (our outputs).
Each output has one or more performance measures that
are monitored throughout the year. Information about
our outputs can be found in the Statement of Service
Performance later in this Report (Part B).
We are also working to identify better measures of whether

We are a relatively new organisation; it takes time to build

we are having an impact on the wider issues to which our

credibility and trust within the community. We have

work contributes. Currently we have identified four impacts

achieved much during the year, and feedback from a range

and six measures to track our longer term progress. From

of audiences has demonstrated that we are improving our

2014 we intend to review these strategic goals, focusing on

clarity of process, despite working with legislation that can

reducing harm through changing unsafe behaviours, and

be complex to understand and administer.

becoming a trusted regulator through fair and transparent

Throughout this Annual Report we can demonstrate how
our science-based approach has reached good decisions for
New Zealanders. See for instance our work on antifouling
paints (page 31). This approach entails working with many

processes, education and enforcement. The revised
framework will form the basis for the EPA’s Statement of
Intent 2014-18.

reach optimal decisions.

Current impact measures
that show our progress
over time

We worked directly and closely with participants in the

The Statement of Intent 2013-17 included the following

Emissions Trading Scheme to improve our service. EPA staff

longer-term impacts that we measure to demonstrate

have conducted detailed interviews with participants about

what progress we are making. The EPA has only been in

their user experience, which complements the customer

existence for two years; trends based on historical data, from

satisfaction data that is collected each year. The value in this

Environmental Risk Management Authority (ERMA) and other

investment is that there is a willing group of engaged and

agencies, can be used, but it is problematic at this early stage

trusting informants with whom we can work on continuous

in the EPA’s development to attribute movements in results

improvements and on the proposed redevelopment of the

to specific EPA initiatives. Over time we should be

New Zealand Emission Unit Register.

able to demonstrate with increasing reliability the impact

members of various communities, and it is this richness of
opinion, debate and knowledge that can ensure that we

that our work has had on the environment and on our
regulatory profile.
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Impact measure 1: Downward trend in the number of serious harm injuries, fatalities and catastrophic
events resulting from the use of hazardous substances and new organisms
There were 1,476 incidents involving hazardous substances reported to the EPA during 2012-13, of which more than 98%
were categorised as Level 1 (minimal). The 12 incidents categorised as Level 3 (moderate) were all reviewed by the relevant
enforcement agency and a report sent to the EPA. There were no incidents at Levels 4 (major) or 5 (massive). The number
of serious harm injuries, fatalities and catastrophic events has not reduced over time: there were 11 incidents at Level 3 in
2009-10, 8 in 2010-11 and 11 in 2011-12. The greatest number of serious incidents occurred in a private dwelling or in a motor
vehicle, and involved LPG gas cylinders, petrol or waste oil. The overwhelming number of incidents were as a result of human
error and poor substance handling. The EPA’s compliance education work, which is underway, should demonstrate results over
time to reduce these figures.
There were 34 incidents involving new organisms, including genetically modified organisms (GMOs), recorded in 2012-13,
compared with 33 for the previous financial year, and 24 in 2010-11. All of the incidents were categorised as Level 2 (minor).
No incidents occurred at Levels 3, 4 or 5. Thirty-one incidents occurred in containment facilities including 24 incidents in zoos
and five incidents involved GMOs. Seventeen incidents resulted in the release from containment of a new organism, involving
16 zoo animals and one GMO. In all incidents, the new organisms were successfully re-contained.
Appendix 2 contains further information on incidents.
Impact measure 2: No EPA-approved organisms become a pest, weed or disease
An independent review is conducted annually to check that no EPA-approved organism becomes a pest, weed or disease.
The latest review, for the 2011-12 year, has verified that this is the case. This is the same result as in 2010-11.
Impact measure 3: Support Boards of Inquiry that make resource management decisions
We supported Boards of Inquiry for the Mackays to Peka Peka Expressway and the New Zealand King Salmon Nationally
Significant Proposal decisions. Three other Boards of Inquiry were underway at the year end: the Christchurch Southern
Motorway, the Peka Peka to North Ōtaki Expressway and the Tukituki Catchment water storage proposal. Two further proposals
have been lodged for consideration. In 2011-12 the EPA developed a standard set of procedures for the operation of Boards of
Inquiry (the ‘base case’) which was provided to Boards during the 2012-13 year and has been adopted by them as the general
process since. This is promoting a better understanding of, and engagement with, the Board of Inquiry process.
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Impact measure 4: Relationships with Māori and community groups are such that useful feedback is
obtained to inform better solutions
The new Te Herenga Māori Network was established to provide an avenue for improving the value and effectiveness of Māori
engagement in decision making by the EPA under the environmental Acts and other obligations for which it is responsible.
Nationally Significant Proposals and the Board of Inquiry procedures include the opportunity for community groups to make
submissions and participate in the Inquiries. There was also significant liaison with community groups, as EEZ regulatory
processes were under consultation and during this period.
Impact measure 5: The price of carbon influences businesses to change their behaviour to reduce
emissions
The market mechanism is a tool to encourage carbon-emitting industries to change behaviours to manage emissions.
During the last year the international and domestic carbon price has remained low. The EPA does not survey participants
to understand their reasons for making business decisions to do with emissions reduction. Through our processing of
applications we have observed both positive and negative influences on emissions reduction. Some participants have taken
advantage of the ETS policy settings to take more control of their emissions costs and embed carbon considerations into their
business practice over a longer period. An example is the expansion of the opt-in provisions in the Liquid Fossil Fuels sector to
allow a larger number of companies to join the scheme and directly manage their carbon liability for a number of fuel types.
This policy change was welcomed by the industry and may demonstrate that carbon pricing is encouraging behavioural
change. In contrast, some participants who are able to deregister from the ETS (such as post-1989 foresters) have done so.
As the price of carbon rises we expect to observe greater levels of emissions-reducing behaviours.
Impact measure 6: Participants’ emissions intensity decreases relative to production (an upward trend
in Unique Emissions Factor applications)
The number of applications for Unique Emissions Factors (UEFs) is another example of industry responding to a carbon price
signal. During the year, the EPA received four applications (2011-12: five applications) for consideration of Unique Emissions
Factors. UEFs reduce a participant’s carbon liability by recognising technologies and practices which reduce their emissions
intensity below industry averages. The continuing trend of low application numbers while the price of carbon is low suggests
that an increased carbon price may lead to a larger number of UEFs. However, regardless of the current market value of units,
with the waste sector entering the scheme during the 2012-13 year we expect a number of landfills will see the benefit in
seeking a UEF.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW \ 15

What we did – by the numbers

187

import or export permits
for ozone-depleting
substances and

88

import or export
permits for chemicals
and wastes issued.

60

existing approvals
for antifouling paints
containing

existing approvals for
organophosphates
and carbamates
containing

active ingredients
reassessed.

active ingredients
reassessed.

15

Over

320

new organism enquiries
answered from researchers,
industry, media, other
government departments
and the general public.
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88
28

35

applications and statutory
determinations for
new organisms.

1,403
applications
for licences,
permissions,
test certifiers,
equipment,
codes of practice,
import certificates
and waivers decided.

98%
of participants are
accurately recorded
in the New Zealand Emission
Unit Register within two
business days of receipt
of a properly completed
application.

10,400
pages of evidence,
and around

180

ETS forestry participants
surrendered 16 million
units and non-forestry
participants surrendered
18 million units to account
for activities that contributed
to New Zealand’s greenhouse
gas emissions.

18
million

witnesses and submitters
were heard during the
hearing on New Zealand
King Salmon’s application
for nine new salmon farms
in the Marlborough Sounds.

16
million

2013

2012

2013

Businesses from all sectors
including forestry
have registered

2,880

activities under the
Emissions Trading Scheme,

330

more than last year.

14 audits

of major allocation
recipients and participating
entities under the
Emissions Trading Scheme.

5

16
million
2012
This compares with
16 million units in total
for the previous year.

new applications
of national significance
were lodged with the EPA.
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Statement of Responsibility
Financial commentary
The year-end result was a surplus of $1,306,000, compared
with a balanced budget. The surplus was mainly due to
lower expenditure ($4,272,000 or 13.7% variance). Revenue
was also lower than budget ($2,966,000 or 9.5% variance)
due to a lower number of Nationally Significant Proposal
applications and the transfer of Crown funding to the next
financial year.

Register (NZEUR). The NZEUR project was underway by
30 June 2013, and it is expected to run for two years. Other
capital expenditure projects completed included moving
to new office accommodation, including replacement of
workstations, office furniture and equipment, procurement of
computer hardware for the upgraded network infrastructure,
and software development. Overall, the capital expenditure
for the year was $2,543,000, with a further $196,000 of capital
expenditure committed but not yet incurred. The capital

The major capital expenditure project started this year

expenditure budget for the year was $3,665,000, including

was the redevelopment of the New Zealand Emission Unit

$1,855,000 transferred from the previous year.

Statement of Responsibility
The Board of the Environmental Protection Authority is responsible for the preparation of the EPA’s Financial Statements and
Statement of Service Performance, and for the judgements made in them.
The Board has the responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.
In the Board’s opinion, these Financial Statements and Statement of Service Performance fairly reflect the financial position
and operations of the EPA for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Kerry Prendergast

Kevin Thompson

Chair

Deputy Chair

Environmental Protection Authority

Environmental Protection Authority

25 October 2013

25 October 2013
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Part B

Service
performance

This section describes the outputs
that the EPA is funded to deliver
and assesses delivery against the
relevant output performance measures
\

Statement of service
performance for 2012-13
This section summarises the EPA’s performance against the output performance measures set out in the Statement of Intent
2012-17, as reflected in the Output Agreements 2012-13 with the Ministers for the Environment and Climate Change Issues.
For each output, we have assessed whether we have met each of the targets associated with each of the measures, and have
provided an explanation where there is a significant difference between the target and what we achieved.
The development of robust and meaningful performance measures and targets is an ongoing process. Historic measures
relating to performance of the functions before the establishment of the EPA do not necessarily translate into the new EPA
operating environment, not least because the EPA is still evolving. The achievement of measures set prior to the financial
year under review may be affected by changes to the structure and direction of the new organisation. Where this is the case,
explanations have been given against the results for the year.
Revenue and costs for the year ended 30 June 2013 by output classes
Actual 2013 $000
COST
Revenue

Output class

Decision making

Budget 2013 $000
COST
Revenue

Actual 2012 $000
COST
Revenue

11,806

13,181

15,056

15,056

10,441

10,722

Compliance and enforcement

4,037

2,619

2,479

2,479

2,557

3,049

Supporting environmental management

3,517

3,070

2,841

2,841

3,815

4,615

Exclusive Economic Zone assessments

994

1,339

2,890

2,890

-

-

6,577

8,028

7,937

7,937

3,969

3,514

-

-

-

-

1,935

2,000

26,931

28,237

31,203

31,203

22,717

23,900

Implementation and operation of Emissions Trading Scheme
EPA transition costs
Total
Cost of outputs for the year ended 30 June 2013

Actual 2013
$000

Budget 2013
$000

Actual 2012
$000

28,237

31,203

23,900

Output 1 – New organism decision making

1,338

2,179

1,528

Output 2 – Hazardous substance, ozone-depleting substance and hazardous
waste decision making

4,762

4,786

4,085

Output 3 – Resource management decision making

5,706

8,091

4,828

Output 4 – Hazardous substance, ozone-depleting substance and hazardous
waste compliance and enforcement

3,168

2,055

1,894

869

424

663

Output 6 – Government policy, legislation and international activities

2,188

1,699

1,994

Output 7 – Resource management advice and support services

1,329

1,142

1,821

994

2,890

-

6,577

7,937

3,969

-

-

1,935

26,931

31,203

22,717

1,306

-

1183

Revenue
Expenditure

Output 5 – Promoting awareness and compliance

Output 8 – Exclusive Economic Zone assessments
Output 9 – Implementation and operation of Emissions Trading Scheme

1

EPA transition

2

Total expenditure
Surplus/(deficit)

Explanation of significant variances against budget can be found in note 28 to the financial statements.
1
2

Actual expenditure in 2012 was for seven months and in two outputs. These were merged in 2013 to form one output.
One off funding for EPA transition completed in 2012.
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Output performance
Vote Environment
Work under Vote Environment relates to the government’s aim to achieve better solutions to environmental problems and
improve the resource management framework.

Output 1: New organism decision making
What we delivered
We made decisions on 35 applications and statutory determinations for new organisms in accordance with the Hazardous
Substances and New Organisms Act 1996 (the HSNO Act).
We approved the release of biological control agents for the weeds Tradescantia fluminensis (‘wandering Willie’) and Berberis
darwinii (Darwin’s barberry), and the first release of a ryegrass endophyte, a fungus that lives within ryegrass to protect it from
invertebrate pests and drought.
We reviewed and updated the containment controls for all genetically modified Arabidopsis (a commonly used research plant)
held in New Zealand.
We provided 36 instances of non-statutory advice on the status of organisms in New Zealand, and answered over 320 new
organism enquiries from researchers, industry, media, other government departments and the general public.
We guided stakeholders through the application process, and in doing so raised awareness and improved applicants’
understanding of how to make an application.
We monitored and provided oversight of decision making that is delegated to Institutional Biological Safety Committees
(IBSCs) at New Zealand universities, and provided guidance, support and advice to delegated decision makers.
How well we delivered it
Output 1 New organism decision making
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

Nil

Nil

Yes

Nil

100%

100%

Yes

100%

There are no successful legal challenges of decisions.

Nil

Nil

Yes

Nil

No decisions are overturned by judicial review on a matter of
process.

Nil

Nil

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

Performance measures

No EPA-approved organism becomes a pest, weed or disease.
All decisions are made within the statutory time frames.

So that: we reduce harm from chemical and biological hazards, and from hazardous waste through more effective
management frameworks
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Further performance information
Table 1 Number of new organism decisions – Part 5
Forecast
numbers
2012-13

Actual
numbers
2012-13

% met all
statutory
requirements
2012-13

% met all
statutory
requirements
2011-12

Notified

3

3

100%

100%

Rapid

0

0

N/A

100%

Application type

New organism release (includes full and conditional)

New organism containment
Notified

0

0

N/A

N/A

Non-notified

8

5

100%

100%

Rapid

0

0

N/A

N/A

Genetically modified organism (GMO) release (includes
full and conditional)
Notified

0

0

N/A

N/A

Rapid

0

0

N/A

N/A

Notified

0

2

100%

N/A

Non-notified

2

3

100%

100%

10

17

100%

100%

1

1

100%

100%

1

4

N/A3

N/A

25

35

-

-

Forecast
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Actual
2011-12

8

11

11

30

36

32

30

42

39

1

1

1

GMO containment (includes developments and imports)

Rapid
Transhipment (GMO or New Organism)
Transhipment
Determination of New Organism status
Determination
Total

Application Type

Other: non-statutory activity
Amendment of existing approvals
Non-statutory advice of status in New Zealand
Institutional Biological Safety Committee activity
Monitoring of ISBC decisions by the EPA
Audit of IBSC delegation

3

N/A: No statutory time frame requirements
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Output 2: Hazardous substance, ozone-depleting substance
and hazardous waste decision making
What we delivered
We decided 725 applications relating to hazardous substances in accordance with Part 5 of the HSNO Act.
This included delivery of two major reassessment projects initiated by the Chief Executive. These two projects re-examined
a total of 148 approvals: the Organophosphate and Carbamate Reassessment reviewed 88 existing approvals containing 28
active ingredients, and the Antifouling Paints Reassessment reviewed 60 existing approvals containing 15 active ingredients.
We decided three externally-generated modified reassessments during the year: the reassessments of Tri-Form and Seguris
Flexi for the modification of controls, and the Aquatic Herbicides Reassessment reviewed 13 existing approvals containing four
active ingredients for their use onto and into water. This year also saw the delivery of four new group standards which were
developed from two other applications.
We assessed and decided 1,403 applications for licences, permissions, test certification, equipment, codes of practice, import
certificates and waivers in accordance with Part 6 of the HSNO Act.
We issued 187 import or export permits for ozone-depleting substances in accordance with the Ozone Layer Protection
Act 1996. We issued 79 import or export permits for chemicals and wastes covered by the Stockholm, Rotterdam, Basel
and Waigani Conventions in accordance with the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988 and the Import and Exports
(Restrictions) Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004.
We developed and updated policies and procedures for decision making relating to pathways under section 28A of the HSNO
Act focusing on statutory compliance, efficiency and effectiveness.
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How well we delivered it
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

Independent audits of a sample of decisions show
that they have taken into account the risks, costs and
benefits relating to the import, manufacture, or use
of hazardous substances, and are compliant with the
HSNO Act and relevant regulations.

100%

Some
minor noncompliance4

No

100%

Independent audits of a sample of decisions show
that they comply with all statutory requirements in
relation to import/export of chemicals and waste
and the use, import/export of ozone-depleting
substances.

100%

Some minor
noncompliance4

No

Some minor
noncompliance

All decisions are made within the statutory
timeframes.

100%

97%
(236 from 244)

No

88%

The Chief Executive-initiated reassessment of 20
substances is achieved within a five-year timeframe
(by 30 June 2013).

20 by
June 2013

515
completed by
June 2013

Yes

Yes

Applicants find the advice provided on the approval
process to be clear, helpful and fit for purpose.

No target

52%

N/A – but
low response
rate

56% – previously
reported under
Output 4

There is a reduction in the number of serious harm
injuries, fatalities and catastrophic events resulting
from the use of hazardous substances and new
organisms.

Reduction

12 Level 3
incidents

No

11 Level 3
incidents

Performance measures

So that: we reduce harm from chemical and biological hazards, and from hazardous waste through more effective
management frameworks

4

5

Some minor issues were identified that were predominantly administrative. Some of these have already been addressed through process improvement, others will be addressed as part
of a larger project in the 2013-14 financial year.
51, of which 23 were from the original Chief Executive’s list of substances for reassessment.
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Further performance information
Table 2 Number of hazardous substance decisions and advice – Part 5 and 6a

Forecast
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

% met all
statutory
requirements6
2012-13

5

4

100%

100%

Non-notified

45

61

100%

100%

Rapid

50

49

100%

98%

25

20

100%

100%

0

2

No statutory
time frames

No statutory
time frames

6

9

100%

100%

Grounds

3

3

No statutory
time frames

No statutory
time frames

Modified

1

3

66%

100%

Full

3

3

100%

100%

Externally generated

0

27

100%

N/A

Internally generated

0

0

N/A

N/A

Amendments

0

0

N/A

50%

10

5

N/A

N/A

6

1

N/A

N/A

475

561

N/A

N/A

0

2

N/A

N/A

629

725

-

-

Application type

% met all
statutory
requirements
2011-12

Import or manufacture for release
Notified

Import or manufacture in containment
Non-notified
Emergency use applications
Special emergency
Transhipment
Transhipment
Reassessments

Group standards

Other
Amendment of existing approval
Statutory determination on a substance
Non-statutory advice – Status of substances
Non-statutory advice – Product labelling
Total

6
7

Includes those with time waivers granted under section 59.
Two applications resulted in four Group Standards being developed.
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Table 3 Number of hazardous substance decisions – Part 6

Forecast
2012-13

Actual
numbers
2012-13

% met all
statutory
requirements
2012-13

% met all
statutory
requirements
2011-12

Initial approvals

4

4

100%

100%

Renewals

6

36

97%

90%

Extensions

4

7

71%

89%

Periodic testers approvals

8

46

93%

90%

8

5

N/A

N/A

20

19

N/A

N/A

Dispensers

3

3

N/A

N/A

Disused tanks

5

5

N/A

N/A

Vapourisers

0

0

N/A

N/A

6

16

N/A

N/A

1,030

915

N/A

N/A

1

3

N/A

N/A

180

190

N/A

N/A

80

89

N/A

N/A

Test Certificate Waiver for fireworks (all types)

0

0

N/A

N/A

Test Certificate Waiver for fireworks (batches)

0

0

N/A

N/A

Sale of fireworks at other times (waiver)

0

0

N/A

N/A

94

36

N/A

N/A

Fire-fighting facility requirements

1

2

N/A

N/A

Reduction of separation distances

30

27

N/A

N/A

Waivers for secondary containment

1

3

N/A

N/A

Clearance of imported cylinder fittings

0

0

N/A

N/A

3

10

N/A

N/A

1,484

1,416

-

-

Application type

Test certifiers

Approvals
Burners
Compliance Plans (tanks and secondary containment)

Permissions and Licences
Permissions
Controlled Substance Licences
Test Certificates
Extension of Location Test Certificate
Explosives
Standard explosives import Certificate
Novelty fireworks import Certificate

Waivers
Pre-commissioning requirements for cylinders

Codes of Practice
Approved Codes of Practice
Total
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For this financial year there has been a change in reporting for HSNO applications to enhance transparency. In the past, total
working days were reported for each application type; we now recognise that the individual statutory time frames within
an application should be treated separately. For example, for an application with two statutory time frames across the life of
the application, if only one time frame is met and the other one is not then the application should be reported as not having
met all statutory time requirements. If a time waiver is granted under section 59 of the HSNO Act then only the specific item
it is applied against is waived. To this end, instead of reporting total processing time for each application type, we report the
percentage of applications where each of the statutory time frames has been met.
Note: Statutory time frames are as follows. All times stated are maximums. However, specific time frames may be waived as per section
59 of the HSNO Act:
Applications that are notified – 10 working days from formal receipt of the application to the date that submissions open.
Thirty working days for submissions to be received. Thirty working days to evaluate submissions and set a date for a hearing (if
required). Notify a decision 30 working days from the conclusion of the hearing or the consideration of the application (if there
was no hearing).
Applications that are not notified – 30 working days from formal receipt to the start of the consideration of the application,
and 30 working days from the conclusion of the consideration to the date the decision is notified.
Applications that undergo rapid assessment – 10 working days from formal receipt to the date the application is decided.
Transhipment Applications – 10 working days from formal receipt to the date the application is decided.
Test Certifier Applications – 20 working days from receipt of final information to the date the application is decided.
Ozone-depleting substance and hazardous waste applications and decision making do not have statutory time frames for
completion.
Table 4 Number of ozone-depleting substance decisions
Application type

Special Permit to import HCFCs

Forecast
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Actual
2011-12

0

6

1

5

5

5

160 106 Approvals
5 Declines

120

Regulation 9A
HCFC Wholesaler import
Regulation 11
Import HCFC
Regulation 9
Export permit

20

23

14

40

32

27

1

2

1

7

8

10

233

187

178

Regulation 23
Import exemption
Regulation 33
Methyl Bromide Wholesaler import
Regulation 7(1)
Methyl Bromide replacement
Regulation 7(3)
Total
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Table 5 Import/export permits 			
Forecast
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Actual
2011-12

Import hazardous waste

40

40

30

Export hazardous waste

30

29

20

2

10

5

72

79

55

Application type

Transit of hazardous waste
Total

Working with industry

Each year several hundred New Zealanders die because of industrial illness, many due
to exposure to hazardous substances. This is significantly more than the annual road toll,
and the level of deaths and serious harm has remained high over many years. We are
committed to working to make workplaces safer.
We know business owners want to keep their staff safe

It is supported by a website, which has an online calculator

too, but our survey work has shown that just 25 percent of

that allows businesses to enter a list of all the chemicals in

businesses properly followed all eight key safety rules for

their workplace and learn what safety measures they need

managing their hazardous substances.

to follow, and some animated safety videos.

These are businesses such as panel beaters, printers,

We are going to keep working to help businesses, and the

furniture finishers, drycleaners – places many people may

general public, understand how to keep themselves and

not consider high-risk.

others safe when using hazardous substances.

The feedback we have received from these industries is that

Our research has shown some people don’t take the risks

people want to follow the rules, but they find it hard to know

seriously because it can take decades for the illnesses to

exactly what to do.

develop. We want to make sure people understand the risks,

So we have created a multimedia ‘Hazardous Substances
Toolbox’ to make it easier for business owners to understand
the rules, and stick to them.
Over five thousand people have already contacted us to get
their free Toolbox, which includes a guide to working safely
with hazardous substances, posters, and an easy-reference
emergency response plan.
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and what they need to do to minimise them.

Antifouling paints

New Zealand is known as a water-loving nation, with many people spending their free time
on the coast, fishing, swimming, or out on their boats.
We know how important it is to protect our marine

paints, and found that, for a third of them, the risks they

environment, and in the past year we have taken an

posed outweighed the benefits. These paints have either had

important step to reducing the risk posed by the toxic

their approvals declined, or have been given time-limited

paints used on boats.

approvals, which mean they will be phased out over the next

The paints, known as antifouling paints, are important to

four to ten years.

many boat owners because they stop algae and other

The remaining paints have had new controls added to their

organisms from building up on their boats’ hulls. This

use to reduce the potential risk to the environment and

reduces fuel use, because it limits the drag on the bottom

to human health. It was important to look at these paints

of boats, and it’s also an important biosecurity measure,

as a group, rather than one by one, to make sure that our

because it prevents the spread of harmful organisms around

decision resulted in a better outcome overall. We want to

New Zealand waters. And for wooden and metal boats, it also

make sure boaties still have access to effective products,

reduces hull damage from rot or corrosion.

but these products should not cause undue harm to

But antifouling paints also come with risks. By their very

New Zealand’s waterways.

nature, antifouling paints are toxic to aquatic organisms

Our assessment involved two years of robust environmental,

and are harmful to human health. The EPA is responsible for

economic, social and cultural assessments, and extensive

ensuring that the risks to New Zealand’s environment, society

consultation with industry and the wider public. We are now

and economy from such substances are minimised, without

working to make sure the industry is aware of the changes,

preventing access to the benefits they provide.

and users know about the new rules and how they can

The EPA conducted a thorough reassessment of antifouling

protect themselves and others from harm.
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Output 3: Resource management decision making
What we delivered
We managed Resource Management Act applications considered to be of national significance. These applications were
submitted directly to the EPA under section 145 of the Resource Management Act 1991.
We processed:
»» applications made directly to the EPA for resource consents or changes to resource consents
»»

requests for changes to plans and notices of requirement for a designation or to change a designation.

Decision making in relation to this output covers pre-application discussions with applicants, assessing applications, providing
advice to the Minister, managing public participation through submissions and hearings, supporting Boards of Inquiry in
considering applications, and releasing decisions.
How well we delivered it
Output 3: Resource management decision making
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

All applications to the EPA assessed for national significance
and a recommendation made to the Minister within 20
working days.

100%

100%

Yes

100%

All applications to the EPA that are referred to a Board
of Inquiry processed within the statutory time frame of
nine months, unless the time frame is extended by the
relevant Minister.

100%

100%

Yes

100%

Reduction

No variations
required

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

No
complaints

Not
achieved8

No

Met

No decisions
overturned

Met

Yes

Met

Performance measures

Downward trend in the number of consents requiring
variations.
No complaints from Boards in relation to the level of support
provided by the EPA
No decisions overturned on judicial review on a matter
of process.

So that: we improve the implementation of the resource management framework to manage environmental effects and
allocate resources within environmental limits

8

One received from a Board of Inquiry.
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Further performance information
Table 6 Number of resource management applications
Forecast
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Outcome as at
30 June 2013

Call-ins and other ministerial
interventions

1

0

N/A

Applications of national significance
lodged with the EPA during 2012-13

4

5

Details below

Application type

Christchurch Southern Motorway

Board of Inquiry under way

Peka Peka to North Ōtaki Expressway

Board of Inquiry under way

Tukituki Catchment proposal
(Hawke’s Bay)

Board of Inquiry under way

Basin Bridge proposal
(Wellington)

Under consideration by the
Minister for the Environment

Ruakura Development, change to
Hamilton City District Plan

Application lodged with the EPA
24 June 2013

Note: decisions on applications are made by independent Boards of Inquiry, not by the EPA.

Sharing their views

More than a thousand people took up our invitation to share their views on New Zealand King
Salmon’s application to develop nine new salmon farms in the Marlborough Sounds.
This unprecedented level of public engagement resulted in

The Board’s final decision, following a time extension to

the most extensive Board of Inquiry hearing to date – about

the statutory time frame due to the complexity of issues,

10,400 pages of evidence were received, and approximately

the volume of evidence received and the level of cross-

180 witnesses and submitters were heard during the hearing.

examination, was to decline five and allow four of the nine

The issues were complex, and the process time-consuming

salmon farms to go ahead.

and costly, but it gave everyone a chance to share their views
on a proposal of national significance in a setting that is less
formal than a traditional court room.

The EPA has now assisted Boards of Inquiry to deliver
decisions on six proposals of national significance.
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Output 4: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozonedepleting chemicals and hazardous waste compliance
What we delivered
We coordinated and assisted in compliance, along with other agencies, with hazardous substance approvals under the
Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996, Part 4 of the Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996, and the relevant provisions
of the Import and Export (Restrictions) Act 1988 and the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004.
We monitored and assisted with compliance with new organism approvals, and developed and maintained policies and
procedures relating to new organism compliance.
During the year we prepared and delivered (with MBIE), over 5,000 free ‘Hazardous Substances Toolbox’ kits to small and
medium-sized businesses to help them with hazardous substance identification, correct storage and use. We held a HSNO
compliance conference in May 2013, attended by over 200 people and addressed by Minister for the Environment, the Hon.
Amy Adams.
How well we delivered it
Output 4: Hazardous substance, new organism, ozone-depleting chemicals, hazardous waste compliance
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

100%

100%

Yes

100%

Programme
developed and
implemented

Achieved

Yes

Achieved

At least 70% of enquirers seeking compliance information
and advice acted on the advice given, where required.

70%

76%

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

No incidents causing adverse effects of new organisms are
caused by inadequate implementation of controls.

None

Achieved

Yes

Achieved

Downward
trend

17

Not
achieved9

13

Performance measures

All central government enforcement agencies regard the
annual HSNO Act compliance activities and intentions report
to be fair and accurate, and consider they had an acceptable
opportunity to provide input into the process and report.
A programme of audits of test certifiers is developed and
implemented by 30 June 2013.

Downward trend in breaches of containment for new
organism containment approvals.

So that: we achieve sustainable allocation and management of New Zealand’s natural and physical resources for national benefit

9

Seventeen incidents (2011-12:13) incidents resulted in the release from containment of a new organism, involving 16 zoo animals and one GMO. In all incidents, the new organisms
were successfully re-contained.
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Output 5: Promoting awareness and compliance
What we delivered
We aim to increase understanding and knowledge of the safe use of hazardous substances and new organisms, and support
compliance with controls and conditions.
During 2012-13 we conducted surveys after particular events, for example Boards of Inquiry, as well as analysing feedback
requested on our website.
Two major Māori National Network hui were held this year. The annual Māori Environmental Management Hui discussed
the utilisation and regulation of land-based and deep-sea resources and provided a forum for iwi/Māori resource and
environmental practitioners to engage with a range of relevant agencies and industry groups. The Tikanga & Technology IV
Wānanga discussed technological advances from an iwi perspective.
How well we delivered it
Output 5: Promoting awareness and compliance
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

70% of people surveyed find the EPA’s information easy to
access and easy to understand (as a measure of the EPA
website).

70%

51%

No

54%

At least 70% of Māori participants surveyed in the Māori
National Network rate its activities as good or very good.

70%

91%

Yes

86%

At least 70% of Māori participants surveyed in the Māori
National Network rate the information provided through its
activities as relevant or very relevant.

70%

96%

Yes

100%

Maintained
Increase
or increased from 2011-12

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

Performance measures

Levels of participation by representatives of multiple interest
groups such as the Māori National Network, industry, and
community and environmental groups in decision making are
maintained or increased.
Increase in the number of hearing days held on marae

Increase

Increase
from 201112, from one
to 3

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

At least 60% of submitters on HSNO applications feel that
their views have been considered somewhat, quite a lot or
fully.

60%

86%

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

At least 60% of submitters on RMA applications feel they have
been able to participate to the extent they wanted.

60%

65%

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

So that: we achieve better solutions to environmental problems by supporting community and Māori involvement and action,
and international cooperation
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Te Herenga

A good relationship requires investment from both sides, and a dedication to making sure
bonds keep developing over time. This year there was a major development in the EPA’s
relationship with Māori – the creation of Te Herenga, a new forum for engagement over
important environmental issues.
The name Te Herenga means ‘the mooring’ and is a metaphor

We are grateful to Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu for allowing us to

for a place that Māori environmental managers can come

use the name Te Herenga – taken from the pounamu mauri

together to discuss issues of the day. The group brings

stone gifted by Ngāi Tahu to the Network in recognition of its

together resource and environmental managers representing

unique purpose and relationship. The meaning of the name

iwi, hapū and Māori organisations to work with the EPA to

and the gift itself serve as a fitting and tangible talisman for

continue to improve the value and effectiveness of Māori

the new forum in the years ahead. If Te Herenga ceases to

engagement in environmental decision making.

exist, the kōhatu will be returned to Ngāi Tahu.

Its membership includes practitioners and experts on

… the taonga has travelled through many generations

kaitiakitanga, commercial and other interests in natural

and has many more to travel. We have the privilege to share

resource and environmental management. They will

and care for it…

be able to share knowledge and experiences as well as
actively contributing to EPA initiatives and improving the
engagement for applications being processed by the EPA.
The forum was created after a year of review and
consultation that drew on the experience of the Māori
National Network, which was set up under the EPA’s
predecessor, ERMA. Te Herenga replaces the Māori National
Network, and many of the Network’s members will now take
part in the new forum.
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The first meeting of Te Herenga was held in July 2013 and
focused on post-settlement environmental management.
We plan to continue to build on the momentum created
by the review and the establishment of the group, through
broadening its representation and by working with the
group to develop a work plan for its members and the EPA.

Output 6: Government policy, legislation and international
activities
What we delivered
We advised on the implementation of Government policy and legislation relevant to the Hazardous Substances and New
Organisms Act 1996, the Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996, the Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1998 and the Imports
and Exports (Restrictions) Prohibition Order 2004.
We monitored and reviewed the effectiveness of the HSNO Act regime, working to ensure inconsistencies or conflicts between
these Acts and other legislation are minimised.
We participated in international developments in the management of hazardous substances, hazardous waste and new organisms.
The output comprises:
»» providing input into ministerial correspondence and responses to parliamentary questions and briefing papers
»» participating in the development of Government policy, legislation and regulations
»» monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the HSNO Act
»» advising on the operation of the Ozone Layer Protection Act and related regulations, and the Imports and Exports
(Restrictions) Act and Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Prohibition Order
»» participating in and representing New Zealand’s interests in the work of international bodies dealing with chemicals
regulations, international convention chemicals and ozone-depleting substances, hazardous substances, hazardous waste and
new organisms. Providing the annual New Zealand contribution to the OECD Part II Programme on the Control of Chemicals.
The volume of activity in this output is demand driven.
How well we delivered it
Output 6: Government policy, legislation and international activities
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

100%

100%

Yes

100%

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

Satisfied

Implementation of the annual work programme, which has
been agreed to by the EPA Board and the Ministry for the
Environment by September 2012.

Work programme
signed off on time
and implemented

Achieved

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

The annual report to the international Ozone Secretariat
required by Article 7 of the Montreal Protocol is provided by
30 June 2013 and is accepted.

Report provided
to the Minister by
30 June 2013 and
accepted

Not
achieved10

No

Achieved

Performance measures

All responses to ministerial correspondence and
parliamentary questions are completed to the satisfaction of
the Ministry for the Environment within five working days (or
as otherwise agreed).
The Ministry for the Environment is satisfied with the
timeliness and quality of EPA advice and input into
Government policy activities, as measured by formal and
informal feedback.

So that: we achieve better solutions to environmental problems by supporting community and Māori involvement and action,
and international cooperation
10

Forwarded to the Ministry for the Environment at the beginning of August 2013.
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Global solutions
The EPA maintains strong international links through its work, in partnership with the Ministry for the Environment and a range
of other New Zealand government agencies.
The work involves:
»» Implementing New Zealand regulations – the EPA implements some New Zealand laws that meet our obligations under
international treaties and other agreements. Examples include legislation relating to chemicals listed in the Stockholm
Convention, regulating the use of ozone-depleting substances and regulating trade in hazardous wastes. We work with
national authorities overseas and with international treaty and convention administrators to ensure that these obligations
are met.
»» Technology and information transfer – we work with overseas agencies to gain information and experience to improve our
decision making. This is of particular value in areas such as chemicals assessment, toxicology, assessment methodologies
for chemicals and offshore minerals, and international standards. For example, the EPA is an active participant in the OECD
Chemicals Programme and the APEC chemical regulators’ forum.
»» Advice – the EPA assists other New Zealand agencies in the development of wider policy on specific issues in the
international arena. Areas where expertise and operational experience are drawn on include chemicals and new
organisms, hazardous wastes, ozone-depleting substances and the Emissions Trading Scheme registry. We have several
staff members who have previously worked for environmental agencies in other countries, and their experience and
expertise is an invaluable addition to our work.
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Output 7: Resource management advice and support services
What we delivered
We provided information, advice and support services in connection with Resource Management Act processes at a national
level, and developed operational frameworks for effective decision making. This year’s achievements include:
»» developing and maintaining policies, procedures and best-practice solutions related to Board of Inquiry decision making
»» increasing the pool of potential Board of Inquiry members who have appropriate certification and competencies
»» improving stakeholders’ understanding of the application process, and public awareness of how to have a say on
applications
»» maintaining strategic relationships, particularly with the Environment Court, local government and other state sector
agencies
»» providing advice and technical input to the Ministry for the Environment on resource management reform and other matters.
How well we delivered it
Output 7: Resource management advice and support services
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

A survey of applicants (or potential applicants) finds that at
least 90% regard the information and advice provided to be
clear, helpful and fit for purpose.

90%

67%11

No

N/A

A survey of submitters finds that at least 70% regard the
information and advice provided to be clear, helpful and fit for
purpose.

70%

69%

No

69%

Steady increase in the pool of resource management decision
makers with the skills to be appointed to Boards of Inquiry.

Increase

Achieved

Yes

Achieved

Feedback from the Chairs of other national-level decisionmaking processes, in which the EPA has been involved, shows
that they are satisfied with the support provided.

Satisfied

No other
national-level
decision-making
processes
this year

N/A

Partially
achieved

All requests for information and advice are responded to
within the agreed timeframes, to the satisfaction of the
requestor (MfE or MFAT), as measured by formal and informal
feedback.

All, to the
satisfaction
of the
requestor

Not achieved12

No

Achieved

Nil

Not achieved13

No

N/A – new
performance
measure

Performance measures

No complaints from Boards or special tribunals in relation to
the level of support provided by the EPA.

So that: we improve the implementation of the resource management framework to manage environmental effects and
allocate resources within environmental limits

11
12
13

Small respondent base (of three) means statistics cannot be extropolated. Method of surveying changed in the year, meaning result not comparable with 2011-2012.
We received adverse feedback about some information related to a Board of Inquiry.
One complaint was received from a Board of Inquiry.
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Output 8: Exclusive Economic Zone Assessments
What we delivered
During the 2012-13 year, we met our key performance indicators for EEZ applications, assessments and compliance
monitoring. The staff resources needed to perform these functions were acquired and all delegations were in place to ensure
that the EPA was ready to perform its role when the EEZ Act came into force on 28 June 2013. By that time all necessary
processes and systems were written, tested and in place to receive marine consents and monitor permitted activities. The EPA
communicated with industry and other interested parties through its Business New Zealand forums and through discussions
with individual operators over the interim measures of the EEZ Act. In addition we worked closely with a number of iwi
organisations in the development of operational policy and process, and in sharing information about opportunities for Māori
to take part in the processing of applications. The EPA attended scientific workshops to make presentations on our role in the
EEZ, and hosted specific presentations to interested members of the public at road shows and hui.
Under the interim measures that applied under the Act, the EPA reviewed and made recommendations on an Environmental
Impact Assessment and on several other reports from various operators who engaged with us. We successfully worked
through potential operational processes, testing what worked well and what did not. The outcome of these reviews was a
greater understanding of the expectations of all parties, and a confirmation of the importance of early discussions.
As of 30 June 2013, no marine consent applications and only one transitional arrangement Impact Assessment had been
submitted to the EPA. The evaluation of this Impact Assessment was under way at the end of the year.
The EPA continues to refine its approach to its regulatory activity in the EEZ, with the aim of ensuring that there is standardised,
holistic management of applications for marine consents (and of reviews) as well as of monitoring of compliance with
conditions on consents.
How well we delivered it
Output 8: EEZ assessments
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

Staffing and delegations are in place, and functions
have been costed.

All

Achieved

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

Processes and systems have been written, tested
and are in place when required.

All

Achieved: marine
consenting and
monitoring of
permitted activities

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

Effective communication channels with all
stakeholders are established.

All Achieved through a
range of forums

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

Impact Assessments submitted under interim
measures are reviewed, and recommendations
made to operators.

All

Achieved: one
Impact Assessment
received and under
review at year end

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

All processes are undertaken within statutory time
limits.

All

N/A14

N/A

N/A – new
performance
measure

Performance measures

14

there were no statutory processes under way at 30 June 2013.
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So that: we improve the implementation of the resource management framework to manage environmental effects and
allocate resources within environmental limits

Engaging communities – the EEZ

We have now moved into our new role within New Zealand’s Exclusive Economic Zone
and Continental Shelf. We have been gearing up for this for two years and we are now
beginning to exercise our new consenting, monitoring and enforcement roles
in New Zealand’s offshore area.
This is not just a new role for the EPA – some of this work has

In July and August 2013 we held public meetings in many

not been done in New Zealand until now. Our role fills a gap

parts of the country to explain how the new regime works,

in the regulation of the various activities that can happen in

the marine consent process, how the public can have input

the part of the marine environment beyond 12 nautical miles

into that process, and the wider role of the EPA in the EEZ.

from the coast.

We will continue to engage with people about the EEZ, in

This is important work and of considerable interest to many

particular with Māori and those with existing interests in

New Zealanders.

the EEZ. We will keep drawing on input from New Zealand

The EPA is well versed in managing and deciding issues
related to environmental effects and risk through our

and overseas to make sure we deliver our goal of effectively
fulfilling our responsibilities in the EEZ.

RMA and HSNO roles and we have brought the best of

Types of activity we now regulate, usually with other

our experience to our function in the EEZ. We have set up

agencies:

systems and processes to help achieve the sustainable
management of the marine environment.

»» prospecting and exploration for petroleum and minerals
»» extraction of petroleum and minerals

The consenting and reporting requirements in the new

»» marine scientific research

regime will generate a great deal of valuable information

»» laying submarine communication cables.

that will contribute to better, more effective environmental
management of the EEZ and Continental Shelf.
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Output 9: Implementation and operation of the New Zealand
Emissions Trading Scheme
What we delivered
Our primary activity under this output relates to the implementation and operation of the Emissions Trading Scheme and the
operation of the New Zealand Emission Unit Register (NZEUR), specifically the administration of the non-forestry allocation,
entitlements and obligations under the Climate Change Response Act 2002.
The Act also provides the facility for the ownership and transfer of units, allowing the carbon market to operate both
domestically and within the Kyoto Protocol.
How well we delivered it
Output 9: Administration of ETS
Standard
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Standard
met

Actual
2011-12

90% of applications for allocations are processed within four
weeks of receiving the signed application summary.

90%

96%

Yes

96%

98% of participants are accurately recorded in the
New Zealand Emission Unit Register within two business days
of receipt of a properly completed application.

98%

98%

Yes

100%

95% of decisions reviewed under section 144 of the Climate
Change Response Act are upheld (Registry and allocations).

95%

No requests
to review
decisions
were
received

N/A

No requests
to review
decisions
were
received

The Ministry for the Environment is satisfied with the
timeliness and quality of EPA reporting on unit transactions
and for international reporting.

Satisfied

Satisfied

Yes

Satisfied

5

4 recipients,
covering 8
applications

No

N/A – new
performance
measure

10

10

Yes

N/A – new
performance
measure

More than
75%

70%

No

N/A – new
performance
measure

The NZEUR is available for public access for 99% of the time
excluding scheduled outages.

99%

99%

Yes

99%

The NZEUR is successfully reconciled with the International
Transaction Log.

Successfully
reconciled

Successfully
reconciled

Yes

Successfully
reconciled

Performance measures

Five audits of major allocation recipients under the ETS are
completed.
Ten audits of participating entities under the ETS are
completed.
Customer satisfaction with the overall quality of service
delivery is greater than 75%.

So that: we maximise the value of the ETS as a key intervention to decrease New Zealand’s net emissions of greenhouse gases
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Further performance information
Table 10 ETS Applications Processed by the EPA

Application type

Registration of non-forestry participants in ETS.
Allocation of New Zealand Units.

Estimated
actual
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Actual
2011-12

20-50

40

182

150-200

139

154

Estimated
Actual
2012-13

Actual
2012-13

Actual
2011-12

1,500

60015

3,588

Table 11 Number of accounts

Application type

Registration accounts in the NZEUR.

15

Account openings tapered off considerably in 2012-13 with the passing of the 31 December 2012 deadline to register post-1990 forest land.
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Part C

The organisation
and its capability

This section outlines how the
organisation is governed and how
we are developing our capability

The organisation and
its capability
Governance
The EPA comprises the Board and staff, supported and advised by Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao (the Māori Advisory Committee).
The Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Committee makes decisions on behalf of the Board on HSNO applications. The
Board reports to the Minister for the Environment (and also to the Minister for Climate Change Issues on matters relevant to his
portfolio).

Minister for Climate Change Issues

Minister for the Environment

Reports to

Appoints

Advises

Ministry for the
Environment

EPA Board

Monitors and reports to
the responsible ministers
on the EPA’s activities

Governs

Ngā Kaihautū
Tikanga Taiao

Supports

Board of
Inquiry

Environmental Protection Authority
Regulates:

Appoints and delegates
HSNO decisions to

HSNO
Decision-making
Committee

Hazardous substances and new organisms
Importing and exporting hazardous waste and ozone depleting substances
Facilitates applications for nationally significant proposals
Administers the Emissions Trading Scheme
Consents for activities in New Zealand’s Exclusive Economic Zone
Oversees compliance and enforcement
Promotes public understanding and safety

The EPA Board has between six and eight members appointed by the Minister for the Environment. The Board is responsible
for the governance of the organisation, including setting strategic direction and monitoring performance. It is also responsible
for the statutory functions set out in legislation, some of which are delegated to Board committees or the Chief Executive.
The Board usually meets monthly to carry out governance functions and deal with major issues. Out-of-session decisions are
made as required. The Board has delegated a range of powers to committees.
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Members of the Board as at 30 June 2013
Kerry Prendergast (Chair)
Dr Kevin Thompson (Deputy Chair)
Anake Goodall
Tim Lusk
Graham Pinnell
Taria Tahana
Gillian Wratt
Committees
The EPA is supported and advised by two statutory committees: the Māori Advisory Committee (Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao)
and the Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Committee.
Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao
Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao (Ngā Kaihautū) has up to eight members who are appointed by the Board under Part 2 of the EPA
Act 2011. Their purpose is to provide the Board with advice on policy, process and decision making by the EPA. This enables
them to ensure that the organisation’s processes are appropriate for achieving effective Māori participation.
Members of Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao
Dr Nicholas (Nick) Roskruge, Tumuaki (Chair), Te Atiawa ki Taranaki, Ngāti Tama, Ngāti Ruanui
Steven (Tīpene) Wilson, Tumuaki Tuarua (Deputy Chair), Ngāti Koroki Kahukura, Ngāti Tura, Ngāti Te Ngākau, Ngāti Apakura
Glenice Paine, Te Atiawa, Ngāi Tahu
Dr James Ataria, Rongomaiwahine, Ngāti Kahungunu, Ngāti Tuwharetoa
James Doherty, Ngāti Tāwhaki, Ngāti Kahungunu, Ngāti Ruāpani, Ngāti Awa, Ngāti Hokopū, Ngāi Tūhoe
Wharemāwhai Mina Timutimu, Te Ati Awa, Ngāti Rāhiri
Marino Tahi, Ngāi Tūhoe
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Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Committee
The HSNO Committee has decision-making powers relating to applications made under the Hazardous Substances and New
Organisms Act 1996.
Members of the HSNO Committee at 30 June 2013 were:
Dr Kevin Thompson (Chair)
Helen Atkins, LLB
Dr Deborah Read
Dr Shaun Ogilvie (Te Arawa, Ngāti Awa)
Dr Valerie Orchard
Dr Kerry Laing
Dr Louise Malone
Damian Stone, LLB, BA
Board committees
The Board has appointed two standing committees to help it in carrying out its governance responsibilities. These are:
»» The Audit and Risk Committee, which oversees the accountability processes and matters of financial and organisational
risk.
»» The Performance Review and Remuneration Committee, which monitors the Chief Executive’s performance and approves
salaries for senior staff members.
Staff
The staff of the EPA support the Board in carrying out its statutory functions and are responsible for delegated decision making
in a number of areas. The organisation is structured into six Groups, each of which is led by a General Manager. They are:
»» Applications and Assessment
»» Compliance
»» Corporate Services
»» Emissions Trading Scheme
»» Kaupapa Kura Taiao
»» Policy and Legal.
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Developing organisational capability
During this second year of operation, the EPA has developed and implemented a number of new initiatives to further enhance
organisational capability. These include:
»» promoting the corporate vision and values through the performance management system and the development of new
EPA competencies
»» implementing a set of initiatives in response to the results of the employee satisfaction survey
»» developing a new online induction programme to make sure new staff have consistent information on the EPA and its
culture
»» devising a career development programme and a leadership development programme.

Measuring our progress
During the year we have been monitoring our progress towards key capability targets:
Target

Achievement

Staff development and performance plans will be in place
and reviewed regularly.

A new performance plan template was designed and
implemented. A plan was put in place for all staff, and regular
updates were carried out during the year.

Individual training needs will be assessed and programmes
put in place.

Individual training needs were identified from performance
plans and from discussions during the year. A number of
courses were run in-house including project management,
How Government Works, time management, and Coaching.
A number of staff are also receiving individual coaching.

Leadership training initiatives will be in place.

A modular leadership course has been developed and
run for all third-tier managers to enhance the skills of the
management team as a whole. The Natural Resources Sector
Building Capable Managers programme is being used to
develop team leaders, project leaders and others who are
identified as having leadership potential.

External salary comparisons will be conducted regularly and
adjustments made as required.

The Hay Group has been contracted to provide information
on market movement and also to conduct job evaluations to
make sure that the EPA can retain market parity. Information
on market movement is also gathered from other sources
such as Mercer.
Adjustments are made to the salary bands annually in line
with market movement.

Recruitment activity, trends, and time to fill vacancies will be
monitored and reported.

Recruitment activity is reported to the Executive Leadership
Team on a fortnightly basis.

Responses to entry and exit surveys will be reviewed and
recommendations for improvements implemented where
feasible.

All staff entering the organisation are provided with induction
surveys after two and eight weeks. All staff leaving the EPA
have the opportunity to complete an exit survey.
The results of these are provided to relevant managers and
changes made where appropriate.
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Good employer obligations
A range of measures has been identified as a key mark of a good employer. We have collected data on these during the year,
and used them for a benchmarking exercise, reporting to the Human Rights Commission, and to improve our performance.
Obligations are monitored in the following areas:
»» leadership, accountability and culture
»» recruitment, selection and induction
»» employee development and promotion
»» the employee exit process
»» flexibility and work design
»» remuneration, recognition and conditions
»» prevention of harassment and bullying
»» maintaining a safe and healthy work environment.
Good employer obligations

Result

Leadership, accountability and culture
Ensure that the vision developed for the new organisation
articulates commitment to equality and diversity.

The vision and values have been articulated through the
performance management system.

The leadership team encourages the development of a
culture that is supportive and equitable for all staff.

The leadership team have been working closely with staff to
ensure that the new values are part of the culture of the EPA.
A monthly Chief Executive’s Award is given to staff who have
demonstrated one or more of the values.

Encourage the development of a learning culture that
will enhance the EPA’s performance while supporting the
aspirations of staff.

One of the organisation’s values is “We learn”. There is
a commitment to staff learning which encompasses
secondments and management opportunities, as well as
formal and informal learning.

Recruitment, selection and induction
Ensure the continued use of robust and transparent
recruitment and selection processes.

The management of recruitment by the Human Resources
specialists continues to use transparent and effective hiring
processes to ensure not only that legislative requirements are
met, but that the best people are selected for employment.

Use innovative channels to attract diverse applicants.

We use a range of channels to attract a diversity of candidates,
including newspapers, journals, websites, job fairs and
international agencies.

Monitor candidate and workforce demographics in relation to Information is collected relating to staff demographics and
age, ethnicity, gender and disability.
reports are prepared for management on a regular basis.
Employee development, promotion and exit
processes
The EPA will provide equal access to personal development
and activities that may lead to promotion.

Each staff member has a development plan and is
encouraged to take up opportunities for advancement or
personal development.

Our performance management practices will be transparent
and fair.

Staff performance plans are reviewed with staff on a regular
basis during the year. An annual review is also undertaken.
Staff are assessed against objectives, and competencies
agreed and signed off at the beginning of the year.
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Good employer obligations

Result

Staff will have the opportunity to complete a confidential
exit survey.

All staff are offered the opportunity to complete a confidential
exit interview, either online or in person.

Flexibility and work design
We will work towards an organisation-wide flexible work
Staff can work flexible hours including part-time work and
programme to recognise the needs of parents and other care working from home.
givers.
We will provide facilities for the use of parents.

There is a private room available for the use of parents.

Remuneration, recognition and conditions
Continue to provide transparent, equitable and genderneutral job evaluation processes.

Our job evaluation processes include a regular review of
job descriptions and the external independent review of
job ‘bands’ and remuneration levels, in order to ensure
transparent, equitable and gender-neutral job evaluation
processes.

The remuneration system will be reviewed regularly.

The remuneration system is reviewed annually.

Prevention of harassment and bullying
Relevant policies and the code of conduct will be promoted
to staff.

All new staff sign to say they have read the code of conduct.
We regularly review the policies and post them on the
intranet to remind staff.

Managers and staff are trained in their responsibilities.

All new staff are provided with induction training and made
aware of their responsibilities.

The leadership team ensures that there is zero tolerance of
harassment and bullying.

If any bullying is identified it is dealt with promptly and in an
appropriate manner.

Safe and healthy environment
Create an environment that supports employee participation The EPA has a Health and Safety Committee with participation
in health and safety.
for staff across the organisation.
Take a proactive approach to employee health and wellbeing.

All staff receive a worksite assessment when they join the EPA,
when they shift to a new desk, or have signs of discomfort.
Yoga and massages are provided on site, at staff’s own
expense.

Staff will have easy access to the Employee Assistance
Programme.

The EPA has an Employee Assistance Programme with an
0800 number. Information on contacting the service is
provided on the intranet, through HR and on posters.

Our human resources policies will reflect these commitments Our human resources policies are reviewed regularly to
and our progress will be reported to the Human Rights
ensure that they meet the requirements for the organisation.
Commission annually.
We report our progress to the Human Rights Commission
annually.
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Technology and assets
Information technology
A disaster recovery plan has been developed, to ensure that there is little if any interruption in our services in case
of business disruption.
IT policies and procedures have been reviewed and updated to incorporate changes to the IT systems.
An IT Security Audit was undertaken during the year and its recommendations have been implemented.
Our website usability is being reviewed from a user perspective, and improvements to navigation, structure and layout
of the site are being considered.
Information management
A review of our electronic document management system (EDRMS) has been completed and recommendations from
the review are being implemented.
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Financial and non-financial performance measures
Unit

Actual
2012-13

Forecast
2012-13

Actual
2011-12

$000

8,355

4,384

8,258

%

359

312

350

Fixed assets as % of total assets

%

57

57

33

Additions as % of fixed assets

%

22.7

18

18

Fixed assets per FTE

$000

43

53

40

Accommodation cost per FTE

$000

7

9

8

%

20

not forecast

N/A

Years

1 year 5
months

not forecast

N/A

Number

150

160

146

Professional Development as % of personnel expenses

%

6.6

4

4.2

Average annual leave liability as % of annual entitlement

%

58

50

63

% male, %
female

36% male,
64% female

Years

41

not forecast

40.5

Number
of clients/
sessions

8 /14

not forecast

8/18

Reported
issues

7 Personal
7 Workplace

not forecast

5 Personal
5 Workplace

Accidents and Incidents

Total number

15

not forecast

8

Work-related ACC claims

Number

0

0

0

Serious-harm incidents

Number

0

0

0

Working capital
Net current assets
Current ratio
Resource utilisation

Human resources
Staff turnover
Average length of service

16

Total FTEs

Gender balance
Average staff age as at 30 June 2013
Employee Assistance Programme usage

16

36% male,
64% female

The EPA is only two years old.
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Part D

Financial
statements
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Financial statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2013

Notes

Actual
2013
$000

Budget
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

2

22,137

23,637

18,947

356

74

182

5,744

7,492

4,771

28,237

31,203

23,900

4

12,577

12,713

11,316

21

397

371

331

Boards of Inquiry remuneration

1,031

3,134

834

Depreciation and amortisation expense

1,516

1,753

1,165

11,410

13,232

9,071

26,931

31,203

22,717

1,306

-

1,183

-

-

-

1,306

-

1,183

Income
Revenue from the Crown
Interest income
Other income

3

Total revenue
Expenditure
Personnel costs
Board member remuneration

Other expenses
Total expenditure
Surplus/ (deficit)
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Note 1 refers to the financial policies of the EPA.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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6

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013

Notes

Actual
2013
$000

Budget
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

7

3,826

1,586

6,485

Debtors and other receivables

8

1,178

548

1,014

Investments

9

6,500

4,250

4,000

78

65

55

11,582

6,449

11,554

Prepayments
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

10

2,927

3,811

2,254

Intangible assets

11

3,556

4,647

3,531

6,483

8,458

5,785

18,065

14 ,907

17,339

Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Creditors and other payables

12

2,049

1,300

1,900

Employee entitlements

13

1,108

765

945

Operating lease

18

70

-

-

Provisions

14

-

-

451

Borrowings

15

-

-

-

3,227

2,065

3,296

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Employee entitlements

13

117

103

121

Operating lease

18

493

-

-

Provisions

14

-

-

-

Borrowings

15

-

-

-

610

103

121

3,837

2,168

3,417

14,228

12,739

13,922

14,228

12,739

13,922

14,228

12,739

13,922

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
General funds
Total equity
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2013

Notes

Balance at 1 July
Capital contribution

16

Repayment of capital

16

Surplus / (deficit) for the year
Balance at 30 June
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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16

Actual
2013
$000

Budget
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

13,922

12,739

12,739

-

-

-

(1,000)

-

-

1,306

-

1,183

14,228

12,739

13,922

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2013

Notes

Actual
2013
$000

Budget
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

2

22,137

23,637

18,947

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from Crown revenue
Interest received

306

83

143

5,593

7,685

3,977

Payments to suppliers

(12,523)

(17,022)

(9,180)

Payments to employees

(12,460)

(12,626)

(10,995)

(249)

(220)

Receipts from other revenue

Goods and services tax (net)
Net cash flows from operating activities

17

86

2,804

1,537

2,978

-

150

-

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts from sale of investments
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Acquisitions of investments

(1,410)

(450)

(553)

(1,060)

(2,500)

Net cash flows from investing activities

(4,463)

(1,360)

(1,297)
(683)
(4,000)
(5,980)

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital contribution

-

-

9,487

(1,000)

-

-

Net cash flows from financing activities

(1,000)

-

9,487

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held

(2,659)

177

6,485

6,485

1,409

-

3,826

1,586

6,485

Repayment of capital

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

7

Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in note 28.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
1. 	Statement of accounting policies for the year ended
30 June 2013
Reporting entity
The Environmental Protection Authority is a Crown entity for the purposes of the Crown Entities Act 2004 and is referred
to throughout this Annual Report as the EPA. This inclusive term is used unless referring to the exercise of specific statutory
powers and functions or specific responsibilities of the legal entity, or where reference to one of the elements of the EPA is
required for clarity. The EPA was established under the Environmental Protection Authority Act 2011 (EPA Act) and commenced
activities on 1 July 2011. The EPA is domiciled in New Zealand and the ultimate parent is the New Zealand Crown.
The primary objective of the EPA is to contribute to the efficient, effective, and transparent management of New Zealand’s
environment and natural and physical resources and to enable New Zealand to meet its international obligations under
environmental Acts.
Accordingly, the EPA has designated itself as a public benefit entity for the purposes of New Zealand Equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS).
The financial statements of the EPA are for the year ended 30 June 2013, and were approved by the Board of the
Environmental Protection Authority on 25 October 2013.
Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Crown Entities Act 2004, which
includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP).
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP as appropriate for a public benefit entity and
they comply with NZ IFRS.
Measurement basis
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except where modified by the revaluation of certain
items of property, plant and equipment, and the measurement of investments at fair value.
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($000). The functional currency of the EPA is New Zealand dollars.
Changes in accounting policies
There have been no revisions to accounting standards during the financial year which have had an effect on the financial
statements.
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Standards, amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet effective and have not been
adopted early
Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective that have not been adopted early and which are
relevant to the EPA, are:
»» NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which will eventually replace NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. NZ IAS 39 is being replaced through the following three main phases: Phase 1 Classification and
Measurement, Phase 2 Impairment Methodology, and Phase 3 Hedge Accounting. Phase 1 on the classification and
measurement of financial assets has been completed and has been published in the new financial instrument standard NZ
IFRS 9. NZ IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortised cost or fair value,
replacing the many different rules in NZ IAS 39. The approach in NZ IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial
instruments (its business model) and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The financial liability
requirements are the same as those of NZ IAS 39, except for when an entity elects to designate a financial liability at fair
value through the surplus/deficit. The new standard is required to be adopted for the year ended 30 June 2016. However,
as a new Accounting Standards Framework will apply before this date, there is no certainty when an equivalent standard
to NZ IFRS 9 will be applied by public benefit entities.
The Minister of Commerce has approved a new Accounting Standards Framework (incorporating a Tier Strategy) developed
by the External Reporting Board (XRB). Under this Framework, the EPA is classified as a Tier 1 reporting entity and it will be
required to apply full Public Benefit Entity Accounting Standards (PAS). These standards are being developed by the XRB based
on current International Public Sector Accounting Standards. The effective date for the new standards for public sector entities
is for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. This means the EPA expects to transition to the new standards
in preparing its 30 June 2015 financial statements. As the PAS are still under development, the EPA is unable to assess the
implications of the new Framework.
Due to the change in the Framework for public benefit entities, it is expected that all new NZ IFRS and amendments to
existing NZ IFRS will not be applicable to public benefit entities. Therefore, the XRB has effectively frozen the financial reporting
requirements for public benefit entities until the new Framework is effective; no disclosure has been made about new or
amended NZ IFRS that exclude public benefit entities from their scope.
Significant accounting policies
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
Revenue from the Crown
The EPA is primarily funded through revenue received from the Crown, which is restricted in its use to the purposes of the EPA
meeting its objectives as specified in the Statement of Intent.
Revenue from the Crown is recognised when it is earned and is reported in the financial period to which it relates. Operating
revenue from the Crown is subject to appropriation under Vote: Environment. The total amount appropriated within the NonDepartmental Output Class is accounted for as income.
Interest
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. Interest income on an impaired financial asset is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.
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Provision of services
Revenue derived through the provision of services to third parties is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion at
the balance sheet date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the stage of work performed.
Capital charge
Changes to the capital charge rules from 1 July 2011 mean that the EPA will not be required to pay any capital charge, since
the EPA total net assets did not exceed $15 million.
Leases
Operating leases
Leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the EPA are classified as
operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the surplus or deficit over the lease term as an integral part of the total lease
expense.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid
investments, with original maturities of three months or less.
Debtors and other receivables
Short-term debtors and other receivables are recorded at their face value, less any provision for impairment.
Impairment of a receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the EPA will not be able to collect amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter into bankruptcy, and default on payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted using the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. When the
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for receivables. Overdue receivables that have been
renegotiated are reclassified as current (ie not past due).
Investments
At each balance date, the EPA assesses whether there is any objective evidence that an investment is impaired. The EPA
investments are all in bank deposits.
Bank Deposits
Investments in bank deposits are initially measured at fair value (plus transaction costs).
After initial recognition, investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for
impairment.
For bank deposits, impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the EPA will not be able to collect amounts
due according to the original terms of the deposit. Significant financial difficulties of the bank, probability that the bank will
enter into receivership or liquidation, and default on payments are considered indicators that the deposit is impaired.
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Equity Investments
The EPA does not have any equity investments.
Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The EPA does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising
from financing activities. The EPA does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
Non-current assets held for sale
The EPA does not have any assets that are classified as held for sale.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of computer hardware, furniture and fixtures, leasehold improvements and office
equipment.
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Additions
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the EPA and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.
In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at no
cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent costs
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the EPA and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the surplus or deficit as they are incurred.
Disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains and
losses on disposals are included in the surplus or deficit.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment at rates that will write off the cost
(or valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives. The useful lives and associated annual
depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been estimated to be:
Computer hardware
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Office equipment

3 to 4 years

(33% - 25%)

6 years

(16.7%)

6 to 9 years

(16.7% - 11%)

6 years

(16.7%)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated remaining useful lives of the
improvements, whichever is the shorter.
The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at least each financial year-end.
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Intangible assets
Software acquisition and development
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised at the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use are recognised as an intangible asset.
Direct costs include software development and the appropriate portion of employee costs and relevant overheads.
Staff training costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. Costs associated with maintaining computer software are
recognised as an expense when incurred.
Costs associated with development and maintenance of the EPA’s website are recognised as an expense when incurred.
Amortisation
The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Amortisation
begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised. The amortisation charge for
each period is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
The useful lives and associated annual amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated to be:
Computer software

3 to 8 years

(33% - 12.5%)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances show that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset where the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset
are not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to generate net cash inflows and where the EPA would, if deprived of the
asset, replace its remaining future economic benefits or service potential.
If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is written-down
to the recoverable amount. For non-financial assets, the total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit. The
reversal of an impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Creditors and other payables
Short-term creditors and other payables are recorded at face value.
Borrowings
The EPA does not have any borrowings.
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Employee entitlements
Short-term employee entitlements
Employee benefits that are due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related services are measured at nominal values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.
These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned but not yet taken at balance date, and sick
leave where applicable.
A liability for sick leave is recognised to the extent that absences in the coming year are expected to be greater than the sick
leave entitlements earned in the coming year. The amount is calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement that can
be carried forward at balance date, to the extent that it will be used by staff to cover those future absences.
A liability and an expense for performance payments is recognised where there is a contractual obligation or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
Long-term employee entitlements
Employee benefits that are due to be settled beyond 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee renders
the related service, such as long-service and retirement leave entitlements, have been calculated on an actuarial basis.
The calculations are based on:
»» likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to entitlement, the likelihood that staff will reach
the point of entitlement, and contractual entitlements information; and
»» the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
The risk-free discount rates and the salary inflation rate were published by The Treasury for consolidation into the
Government’s financial statements at 30 June 2013.
Superannuation schemes
Defined contribution schemes
KiwiSaver is accounted for as a defined contribution superannuation scheme. Obligations for contributions are recognised as
an expense in the surplus or deficit as incurred.
Provisions
A provision for future expenditure of an uncertain amount or timing occurs when there is a present obligation (either legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense and is included in “finance costs”.
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Equity
Equity is measured as the difference between the total assets and total liabilities. Equity consists of general funds.
Goods and Service Tax (GST)
All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables, which are stated on a GSTinclusive basis. Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part of receivables
or payables in the statement of financial position.
The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified as an
operating cash flow in the statement of cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.
Income Tax
The EPA is a public authority and so is exempt from the payment of income tax. Therefore no provision has been made for
income tax.
Budget figures
The budget figures are derived from the Statement of Intent as approved by the Board at the beginning of the financial year.
The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP and using accounting policies that are consistent with
those adopted by the Board in preparing these financial statements.
Cost Allocation
The EPA has determined the cost of outputs using the cost allocation outlined below.
Direct costs are those costs directly attributed to an output. Indirect costs are those costs that cannot be identified in an
economically feasible manner with a specific output.
Direct costs are charged directly to outputs. Indirect costs are charged to outputs based on cost drivers and related activity or
usage information. Depreciation and property and other premises costs, such as maintenance, are charged on the basis of staff
numbers. Personnel costs are charged on the basis of actual time incurred.
All other costs are assigned to outputs on a proportional basis, using direct personnel time as the cost driver, based on actual
data collected through the time recording system for the year.
There have been no changes to the cost allocation methodology since the publication of the Statement of Intent.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
In preparing these financial statements, the EPA has made estimates and assumptions about the future. These estimates and
assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Estimating useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment
At each balance date, the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed. Assessing the
appropriateness of useful-life and residual-value estimates of property, plant and equipment requires a number of factors to be
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considered such as the physical condition of the asset, expected period of use of the asset by the EPA and expected disposal
proceeds from the future sale of the asset.
An incorrect estimate of the useful life or residual value will affect the depreciation expense recognised in the surplus or deficit,
and the carrying amount of the asset in the statement of financial position.
The EPA minimises the risk of this estimation uncertainty by:
»» physical inspection of assets; and
»» asset replacement programmes.
The EPA has not made significant changes to past assumptions concerning useful lives and residual values.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 10.
Retirement and long service leave
Note 13 provides an analysis of the exposure in relation to estimates and uncertainties surrounding retirement and long
service leave liabilities.
Critical judgements in applying the EPA’s accounting policies
Management has exercised the following critical judgements in applying accounting policies:
Lease classification
Determining whether a lease agreement is a finance or an operating lease requires judgement as to whether the agreement
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the EPA.
Judgement is required on various aspects that include, but are not limited to, the fair value of the leased asset, the economic
life of the leased asset, whether or not to include renewal options in the lease term, and determining an appropriate discount
rate to calculate the present value of the minimum lease payments. Classification as a finance lease means the asset is
recognised in the statement of financial position as property, plant and equipment, whereas for an operating lease no such
asset is recognised.
The EPA has exercised its judgement on the appropriate classification of equipment leases and has determined that a number
of lease arrangements are not finance leases.
Classification of intangible assets
The EPA purchased and developed a number of databases for the management of HSNO Act applications. These databases are
estimated to have a useful life of eight years. The EPA also took over the New Zealand Emission Unit Register developed by the
then Ministry of Economic Development (MED) (now Ministry for Business, Innovation and Employment) for the administration
of the Emissions Units. The estimated useful life of the Register is about six years. In the event of a complete revamp of any
database or the Register, the unamortised portion will be written off in the surplus or deficit.
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2. 	Revenue from the Crown	
The EPA has been provided with funding from the Crown for the specific purposes set out in its founding legislation and in
the scope of the relevant government appropriations. Apart from these restrictions, there are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attached to government funding.

Budgeted from the Crown as per Supplementary Estimates
Plus in-principle expense transfer from 2011-12
Less in-principle expense transfer from 2011-12 to 2012-13
Less expense transfer to 2013-14
Total

Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

20,992

21,592

2,645

-

(1,500)

(2,645)
-

22,137

18,947

Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

315

449

95

89

3. 	Other revenue

Hazardous Substances Part 5 application fees
New Organisms Part 5 application fees
Hazardous Substances Part 6 application fees

184

145

5,132

3,919

18

169

5,744

4,771

Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

11,680

10,510

Employer contributions to defined-contribution plans

213

184

Increase / (decrease) in employee entitlements (Note 13)

150

184

Other staff-related costs

534

438

12,577

11,316

Resource Management Act cost-recovery fees
Other fees and revenue
Total other revenue

4. 	Personnel costs

Salaries and wages

Total personnel costs

Employer contributions to defined-contribution plans include contributions to KiwiSaver and to the Government
Superannuation Fund.
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5. 	Capital charge
The EPA does not pay a capital charge to the Crown on its taxpayers’ funds, as its net assets are below the threshold
of $15 million.

6. 	Other expenses
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Audit Fees

61

52

Staff travel

855

506

1,453

1,356

42

71

Boards of Inquiry Expenses

2,483

1,964

Consultancy

2,863

2,756

-

31

3,653

2,335

11,410

9,071

Operating lease expense
ACC levy

Website development expenses
Other
Total other expenses

Consultancy expenses exclude consultancy for Boards of Inquiry. Consultancy for the other expenses includes computing
and telecommunications, office stationery, publications and office maintenance. EPA establishment Nil – establishment work
completed in 2011-12 year (2012 - $1,404,000).

7. 	Cash and cash equivalents
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Cash on hand and at bank

1,826

6,485

Cash equivalents – term deposits (90 days or less)

2,000

-

3,826

6,485

Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

1,089

975

89

39

-

-

1,178

1,014

Total cash and cash equivalents

8. 	Debtors and other receivables

Debtors and other receivables
Accrued interest
Less provision for impairment
Total debtors and other receivables
The carrying value of receivables approximates their fair value.
There is no carrying amount of receivables that are past due and renegotiated.
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9.	Investments
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

6,500

4,000

6,500

4,000

Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Term deposits of maturities of 4-12 months with average maturity of 243 days
(2012 – 4 to 6 months with average maturity of 163 days).

6,500

4,000

Weighted average effective interest rate

4.22%

4.36%

Current investments are represented by:
Term deposits
Total current portion and investments
There were no impairment provisions for investments.
Maturity analysis and effective interest rates of term deposits
The maturity dates and weighted average effective interest rates for term deposits are:

The carrying amounts of term deposits with maturities less than twelve months approximate their fair value.
There are five term deposits between four to twelve months in 2013 and they were invested at rates between 4.05% and
4.30% (2012 – three term deposits between 4 to 6 months at rates between 4.10% and 4.40%). As these term deposits were at
a fixed interest rate and measured at amortised cost, an increase or decrease in interest rates during the period did not impact
the measurement of the investments. Hence, there was no impact on the surplus or equity.
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10. 	Property, plant and equipment
Movements for each class of property, plant and equipment are:
Computer
hardware
$000

Furniture
and fittings
$000

Office
equipmentowned
$000

Leasehold
improvements
$000

TOTAL
$000

1,313

487

364

1,019

3,183

Cost or valuation
Balance at 1 July 2011
Transferred from MED (MBIE)

855

-

-

-

855

Additions

238

167

117

1,064

1,586

Disposals

(77)

(33)

(11)

Balance at 30 June 2012
Balance at 1 July 2012

2,329

-

621

470

2,083

(121)
5,503

2,329

621

470

2,083

5,503

Additions

263

600

31

516

1,410

Disposals

(145)

-

-

(1,019)

(1,164)

2,447

1,221

501

1,580

5,749

960

419

318

1,001

2,698

35

-

-

-

35

Depreciation expense

576

28

30

3

637

Eliminate on disposal

(77)

(33)

(11)

-

(121)

1,494

414

337

1,004

3,249

Balance at 1 July 2012

1,494

414

337

1,004

3,249

Depreciation expense

425

123

31

144

723

Eliminate on disposal

(145)

-

-

(1,005)

(1,150)

1,774

537

368

143

2,822

353

68

46

18

485

Balance at 30 June 2013
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2011
Transferred from MED (MBIE)

Balance at 30 June 2012

Balance at 30 June 2013
Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2011
At 1 July 2012

835

207

133

1,079

2,254

At 30 June 2013

673

684

133

1,437

2,927

There is no Work in Progress balance for Property, Plant and Equipment at 30 June 2013 (2012 - $1,098,000).
No impairment was established for any property, plant and equipment.
There are no finance leases at 30 June 2013.
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11.	Intangible assets
Movement for each class of intangible asset is:
Acquired software
$000

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2011

1,717

Transferred from MED (MBIE)

4,900

Additions

683

Disposals

-

Balance at 30 June 2012
Balance at 1 July 2012

7,300
7,300

Additions

818

Disposals

-

Balance at 30 June 2013

8,118

Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
Balance at 1 July 2011
Transferred from MED (MBIE)
Amortisation expenses
Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2012
Balance at 1 July 2012
Amortisation expenses
Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2013

836
2,405
528
3,769
3,769
793
4,562

Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2011

881

At 1 July 2012

3,531

At 30 June 2013

3,556

Work-in-progress for intangible assets at 30 June 2013 was $332,000 (2012 - $25,000)
There are no restrictions over the title of the EPA’s intangible assets, nor are any intangible assets pledged as security for
liabilities.
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12.	Creditors and other payables
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

969

102

Income in advance

75

112

Accrued expenses

738

1,194

Other payables

267

492

2,049

1,900

Creditors

Total creditors and other payables

Creditors and other payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms, therefore the carrying value of
creditors and other payables approximates their fair value.

13.	Employee entitlements
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Accrued salaries and wages

347

295

Accrued performance payments

147

96

Annual leave

586

536

28

18

1,108

945

105

104

12

17

117

121

1,225

1,066

Current employee entitlements are represented by:

Long service leave
Total current employee entitlements
Non-current employee entitlements are represented by:
Long-service leave
Retirement leave
Total indirect employee entitlements
Total employee entitlements

The present values of the long-service and retirement leave obligations depend on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using the model issued by The Treasury. Two key assumptions used in calculating this liability were the
discount rates and the salary inflation factor. Any changes in these assumptions will affect the carrying amount of the liability.
The discount rates and the salary inflation factor were published by The Treasury in July 2013 for the purposes of determining
liability at 30 June 2013. The discount rates used were: 1 year at 2.71% (2012 – 2.43%); 2 years at 3.14% (2012 – 2.47%); and 3 or
more years at 5.50% (2012 – 6.00%). The salary inflation factor was 3.5% (2012 – 3.5%).
If the discount rates were to differ by 1% from that used, with all other factors held constant, the carrying amount of the longservice and retirement leave liability would be an estimated $8,000 (2012 - $5,000) higher or lower.
If the long-term salary inflation factor were to differ by 1% from that used, with all other factors held constant, the carrying
amount of the long-service and retirement liability would be an estimated $10,000 (2012 - $7,000) higher or lower.

Financial statements \ 73

14.	PROVISIONS
Provision is made for the estimated cost expected to be incurred to reinstate leased accommodation at the conclusion
of leases.
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Lease make-good

-

161

Onerous contract

-

290

Total current portion

-

451

Total provisions

-

451

Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

451

161

-

290

Current Provisions are represented by:

Movements for each class of provision are:

Balance at 1 July
Extra provisions made – onerous contract
Provisions used
Provision reversed
Balance at 30 June 2013

(390)

-

(61)

-

-

451

The EPA has no lease make-good clause in its current accommodation lease. The provision for onerous contract was released
when the previous accommodation lease expired on 31 March 2013.

15.	Borrowings
The EPA did not enter into other borrowing arrangements or financial leases in 2012-13.
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16.	Equity
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

13,922

-

Capital contribution from Crown

-

3,838

Assets transferred from MED (MBIE)*

-

5,756

Assets transferred from ERMA**

-

3,145

General funds
Balance at 1 July

Repayment of capital

(1,000)

Surplus / (deficit)

1,306

1,183

14,228

13,922

Total equity 30 June

-

17.	Reconciliation of net surplus / (deficit) to net cash from
operating activities

Net surplus / (deficit) after tax

Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

1,306

1,183

1,516

1,165

1,516

1,165

Add / (less) non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Total non-cash items
Add / (less) items classified as investing or financing activities:
(Gains) / losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment

14

(1)

Total items classified as investing or financing activities

14

(1)

Add / (less) movement in working capital items:
Debtors and other receivables

(187)

(1,069)

Creditors and other payables

(116)

1,226

Provisions – onerous contract

(451)

290

Operating Lease – movements

563

-

Employee entitlements

159

184

Net movements in working capital items

(32)

631

Net cash from operating activities

2,804

2,978

*These assets were transferred from the then Ministry of Economic Development (MED) (now Ministry for Business, Innovation and
Employment) specifically for the Emissions Trading Scheme.
**The Environmental Risk Management Authority (ERMA) was disestablished in 2011 and all its assets were transferred to the EPA.
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18.	Capital commitments and operating leases
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

-

953

Intangible assets

196

595

Total capital commitments

196

1,548

Capital commitments
Property, plant and equipment

Capital commitments represent capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not yet incurred.		
Operating leases as leasee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under non-cancellable operating leases are:		
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Not later than one year

1,155

1,128

Later than one year and not later than five years

4,623

4,555

Later than five years

3,470

4,559

9,248

10,242

Total non-cancellable operating leases

Operating lease commitment relates only to Grant Thornton House, in which the EPA occupies five floors with two rights of
renewal to 2027.
Operating lease as liability
In accordance with New Zealand International Accounting Standards (NZ IAS) 17 - Leases, the EPA has spread the “rent
holiday period” over the life of the operating lease for the five floors at Grant Thornton House. This has created a liability in the
Statement of Financial Position.
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Accommodation lease

70

-

Total operating lease - current

70

-

Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Accommodation lease

493

-

Total operating lease – non-current

493

-

Operating lease – current

Operating lease – non-current
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19.	Contingencies
Contingent assets or liabilities
The EPA is not aware of the existence of any contingent assets or liabilities as at 30 June 2013 (2012 - nil).

20.	Related-party transactions and key management
personnel
The EPA is a wholly owned entity of the Crown. The Government influences the roles of the entity as well as being its major
source of revenue.
Significant transactions with government-related entities
The EPA has been provided with funding from the Crown of $22.137 million (2012 - $18.9 million) for specific purposes as set
out in its founding legislation and in the scope of the relevant government appropriations.
Collectively, but not individually, significant, transactions with government-related entities
In conducting its activities, the EPA is required to pay various taxes and levies (such as GST, FBT, PAYE, and ACC levies) to the
Crown and to entities related to the Crown. The payment of these taxes and levies, other than income tax, is based on the
standard terms and conditions that apply to all tax and levy payers. The EPA is exempt from paying income tax.
The EPA also purchases goods and services from entities controlled, significantly influenced, or jointly controlled by the Crown.
Purchases from these government-related entities for the year ended 30 June 2013 totalled $659,000 (2012 - $366,000). These
purchases included air travel from Air New Zealand and postal services from New Zealand Post.
Key management personnel
There were no transactions entered into during the year with key management personnel.
No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised for impairment of receivables from related parties.
Key management personnel compensation
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

1,349

1,308

Post-employment benefit

-

-

Other long-term benefit

-

-

Termination benefits

-

92

Board remuneration

195

195

Salaries, fees and other short-term employee benefits

Ngā Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao remuneration
Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Committee remuneration
Total key management personnel compensation

87

71

115

65

1,746

1,731

Key management personnel include all the Board, Nga Kaihautū Tikanga Taiao and the HSNO Committee members,
the Chief Executive and the six members of the Executive Leadership Team.
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21.	Board member and committee remuneration
Actual 2013 $000

Actual 2012 $000

48

Board
1

Kerry Prendergast

Chair

48

3

Kevin Thompson

Deputy Chair (appointed August 2012)

23

-

5

Richard Woods

Deputy Chair (term ended August 2012)

3

21

5

David Faulkner

Member (term ended March 2013)

16

21

1

Anake Goodall

Member

21

21

1

Tim Lusk

Member

21

21

1

Graham Pinnell

Member

21

21

1

Taria Tahana

Member

21

21

1

Gillian Wratt

Member

21

21

195

195

Ngā Kaihautū TikaNgā Taiao
2

Nick Roskuge

Chair

20

12

4

Steven (Tīpene) Wilson

Deputy Chair (appointed May 2012)

12

2

2

James Ataria

Member

17

11

2

Glenice Paine

Member

13

26

4

James Doherty

Member (appointed October 2011)

14

10

4

Wharemāwhai Mina Timutimu

Member (appointed October 2011)

10

4

6

Te Kei Merito

Deputy Chair (term ended December 2011)

-

4

6

Darcia Solomon

Member (term ended December 2011)

-

2

3

Marino Tahi

Member (appointed June 2013)

1

-

87

71

Note: Glenice Paine was the chair in 2012
Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Committee
3

Kevin Thompson*

Chair (appointed August 2012)

17

-

5

Richard Woods*

Chair (term ended August 2012)

1

10

2

Helen Atkins

Member

21

12

6

Max Suckling

Deputy Chair (term ended 30 June 2012)

-

5

6

Manuka Henare

Member (term ended 30 June 2012)

-

10

2

Val Orchard

Member

16

7

2

Deborah Read

Member

11

6

2

Shaun Ogilvie

Member

18

15

3

Damian Stone

Member (appointed July 2012)

7

-

3

Kerry Laing

Member (appointed July 2012)

13

-

3

Louise Malone

Member (appointed July 2012)

6

-

7

Gillian Wratt*

Antifouling paints re-assessment

5

-

115

65

397

331

Total Board member remuneration
*Board members who sit in the Hazardous and New Organisms Committee received additional fees.
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Key: 1 = appointed in June 2011

5 = term ended in current year

2 = appointed in July 2011

6 = term ended in previous year

3 = appointed in current year

7 = Antifouling paints re-assessment only

4 = appointed in previous year

22.	Employee remuneration
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

$100,000 - $109,999

7

11

$110,000 - $119,999

12

7

$130,000 - $139,999

1

-

$140,000 - $149,999

1

1

$150,000 - $159,999

1

3

$160,000 - $169,999

2

1

$170,000 - $179,999

1

-

$180,000 - $189,999

2

1

$270,000 - $279,999

-

1

$310,000 - $319,999

1

1

28

26

Total remuneration paid or payable:

Total employees

The total remuneration and other benefits of the Chief Executive were in the $310,000 to $319,999 band (2012 - $310,000
to $319,999 band).
During the year ended 30 June 2013, no employee received any compensation or other benefits in relation to cessation
(2012 - $92,000). No Board member received any compensation or other benefits in relation to cessation (2012 – nil).

23.	Indemnity
The Board has taken out insurance cover against loss caused by the wrongful acts or omissions of test certifiers approved by
the Board under the HSNO Act where those acts or omissions occurred in a professional capacity in respect of test certifiers’
duties under the HSNO Act. In addition, the Board has agreed to indemnify members (as well as members of Ngā Kaihautū
Tikanga Taiao, HSNO Committee, external experts co-opted onto decision-making committees, and EPA employees) in relation
to acts or omissions made in good faith and in the performance or intended performance of the EPA’s functions.
The Board has taken insurance cover for personal accident and travel risks associated with overseas travel for members
of the Board and staff.

24.	Events after the balance sheet date
No significant events occurred between 30 June 2013 (2012 – nil) and the date of signing the financial statements that
would materially affect the financial statements.
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25. Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities in each of the NZ IAS 39 categories are:
Actual
2013
$000

Actual
2012
$000

Cash and cash equivalents

3,826

6,485

Debtors and other receivables

1,089

975

89

39

6,500

4,000

11,504

11,499

2,049

1,900

Loans and receivables

Accrued interest
Other financial assets
Total loans and receivables
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Creditors and other payables
Borrowings
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

2,049

1,900

26.	Financial instrument risks
The EPA’s activities expose it to a variety of financial instrument risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The EPA
has a number of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments to minimise exposure. These policies do not
allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into.
Market risk
The interest rates on the EPA’s investments are disclosed in Note 9.
Fair value interest rate risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rates. The EPA’s exposure to fair value interest rate risk is limited to its bank deposits which are held at fixed rates of interest. The
EPA does not actively manage its exposure to fair value interest rate risk.
Cash flow interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Investments issued at variable interest rates expose the EPA to cash flow interest rate risk.
The EPA’s investment policy requires a spread of investment maturity dates to limit exposure to short-term interest rate
movements. The EPA currently has no variable interest rate investments.
Sensitivity analysis
If the average daily bank interest rate had been 50 basis points lower for the year ended 30 June 2013, with all other variables
held constant, the surplus for the year would have been $49,000 lower (2012 - $26,000 lower).
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Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.
The EPA has no significant exposure to foreign currency risks as most of its financial instruments are denominated in
New Zealand dollars, with only $47,000 (2012 - $20,000) denominated in US dollars.
Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. The EPA has
no financial instrument that is exposed to changes in market prices.
Credit risk
A credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to the EPA, causing the EPA to incur a loss.
Due to the timing of its cash inflows and outflows, the EPA invests surplus cash with Westpac Banking Corporation.
The EPA’s investment policy allows the investment of cash with other registered banks with a Standard and Poor’s credit rating
of AA- or higher.
The EPA has processes in place to review the credit quality of customers prior to the granting of credit.
The EPA’s maximum credit exposure for each class of financial instrument is represented by the total carrying amount of cash
and cash equivalents (Note 7), net debtors (Note 8), and term deposits (Note 9). There is no collateral held as security against
these financial instruments, including those instruments that are overdue or impaired.
The EPA has no significant concentrations of credit risk, as it has a small number of credit customers and only invests funds
with registered banks with specified Standard and Poor’s credit ratings.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the EPA will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the ability to convert term deposits into ready cash at short
notice, and the availability of funding through the Crown.
In meeting its liquidity requirements, the EPA maintains a target level of investments that must mature within specified time
frames.
Contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities, excluding derivatives
The table below analyses the EPA’s financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flow

Less than
6 months

6-12
months

Later than
1 year

1,900

1,900

1,900

-

-

2,049

2,049

2,049

-

2012
Creditors and other payables (Note12)
2013
Creditors and other payables (note 12)

The EPA does not have any derivative financial instruments (2012 - nil).
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27.	Capital management
The EPA’s capital is its equity, which comprises accumulated funds and other reserves. Equity is represented by net assets.
The EPA is subject to the financial management and accountability provisions of the Crown Entities Act 2004, which impose
restrictions in relation to borrowings, acquisition of securities, issuing guarantees and indemnities, and the use of derivatives.
The EPA manages its equity as a by-product of prudently managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and
general financial dealings, to ensure the EPA effectively achieves its objectives and purpose, while remaining a going concern.

28.	Explanation of significant variances against budget
Explanations for significant variations from EPA budget figures in the Statement of Intent are:
Cost of outputs
Output

Output 1 – New organism decision making
Output 2 – Hazardous substance, ozone-depleting
substance and hazardous waste decision making
Output 3 – Resource management decisionmaking

Variance

Comments

841 The underspend is due to less hearings than anticipated and
unfilled vacancies. This output is demand driven.
24 The underspend is due to unfilled vacancies.
2,385 The underspend is due to delays to nationally significant
proposals that are submitted under section 145 of the
Resource Management Act 1991.This underspend is mainly in
the Boards of Inquiry Fees of $2,103,000.

Output 4 – Hazardous substance, ozone-depleting
substance and hazardous waste compliance and
enforcement

(1,113) The overspend is due to additional costs associated with the
Compliance group creating a chemical calculator, website
and tool-box.

Output 5 – Promoting awareness and compliance

(445) The overspend is due to additional projects that were not
in the original budget. The projects include the chemical
calculator, website and tool-box.

Output 6 – Government policy, legislation and
international activities

(489) The overspend is due to an increase in work relating to the
Exclusive Economic Zone legislation.

Output 7 – Resource management advice and
support services

(187) The overspend is due to additional work in supporting the
changes to the Resource Management Act.

Output 8 – Exclusive Economic Zone assessments

1,896 The underspend is due to the uncertainty in the completion
of the Exclusive Economic Zone regulations. A significant
portion of the estimated implementation costs have been
deferred to the 2013-14 year.

Output 9 – Implementation and operation of
Emissions Trading Scheme

1,360 The underspend is due to the timing of the NZ Emissions
Units Registry redevelopment.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Total revenue
Overall, the decrease in revenue of $2,966,000 was mainly due to a lower number of Nationally Significant Proposal
applications and the transfer of Crown funding to the next financial year for the implementation of the EEZ.
Personnel costs
The decrease in personnel costs of $136,000 was due to unfilled staff vacancies.
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Board member remuneration
The increase of $26,000 was due to more time being spent on decision-making activities by the HSNO committee.
Boards of Inquiry fees
The decrease in the Boards of Inquiry fees of $2,103,000 was due to a lower number of Nationally Significant Proposal
applications.
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
The delay in the completion of the new-premises project and the delay in the beginning of the redevelopment of the ETS
Registry and other HSNO databases contributed to the lower depreciation charge for the year by $237,000.
Other expenses
The decrease was mainly due to less consultant expenses, domestic travel, publication and other expenses of $1,822,000.
The reduction in these expenses was related mainly to the lower number of Nationally Significant Proposal applications and
the implementation of the EEZ Act.
Statement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents
Less cash was used for payments to creditors for capital and operating expenditure, as well as because the start in the
redevelopment of the ETS Registry was delayed.
Non-current assets
Non-current assets were less than budget by $1,975,000, mainly due to delays in completing a number of software
development projects relating to the enhancement of the HSNO databases and the ETS Registry.
Employee entitlements
Employee entitlements were more than budget by $343,000 largely due to more accruals for leave liabilities, and for salaries
and wages.
Creditors and other payables
Creditors and other payables were more than budget by $749,000 mainly due to more accruals of expenses at year-end.
Operating lease
This liability was created as a result of complying with NZIAS 17-Leases.
Statement of Changes in Equity
Surplus / deficit for the year
The operating result for the year was a surplus of $1,306,000 compared to a balance budget. The budget variances are
explained in the variations of the statement of comprehensive income above.
Statement of Changes in Cash Flows
Receipts from other revenue and payments to suppliers were less than budget mainly due to a lower number of Nationally
Significant Proposal applications and the transfer of funding for the implementation of the EEZ Act to the next financial year. In
addition, the lower personnel costs resulted in less cash outflow to employees.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the readers of the Environmental Protection Authority’s financial statements and non-financial
performance information for the year ended 30 June 2013
The Auditor-General is the auditor of the Environmental Protection Authority (the EPA). The Auditor-General has appointed
me, Robert Cox, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to carry out the audit of the financial statements and nonfinancial performance information of the EPA on her behalf.
We have audited:
»» the financial statements of the EPA on pages 56 to 83, that comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013,
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended
on that date and notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; and
»» the non-financial performance information of the EPA on pages 22 to 43 that comprises the statement of service
performance, and the report about impacts on pages 14 to 15.
Opinion
In our opinion:
»» the financial statements of the EPA on pages 56 to 83:
–

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

–

fairly reflect the EPA’s:
–

financial position as at 30 June 2013; and

–

financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

»» the non-financial performance information of the EPA on pages 14 to 15 and 22 to 43:
–

complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

–

fairly reflects the EPA’s service performance and impacts for the year ended 30 June 2013, including for each class
of outputs:
–

its service performance compared with forecasts in the statement of forecast service performance at the start
of the financial year; and

–

its actual revenue and output expenses compared with the forecasts in the statement of forecast service
performance at the start of the financial year.

Our audit was completed on 25 October 2013. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.
The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board and our responsibilities,
and we explain our independence.
Basis of opinion
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the International
Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
carry out our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and non-financial performance
information are free from material misstatement.
Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, in our judgement, are likely to influence
readers’ overall understanding of the financial statements and non-financial performance information. If we had found material
misstatements that were not corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion.
An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
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statements and non-financial performance information. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including our
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and non-financial performance information, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the preparation of the EPA’s
financial statements and non-financial performance information that fairly reflect the matters to which they relate. We consider
internal control in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the EPA’s internal control.
An audit also involves evaluating:
»» the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been consistently applied;
»» the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by the Board;
»» the appropriateness of the reported non-financial performance information within the EPA’s framework for reporting
performance;
»» the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial statements and non-financial performance information; and
»» the overall presentation of the financial statements and non-financial performance information.
We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements and non-financial
performance information. Also we did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial
statements and non-financial performance information.
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required and we believe we have obtained sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is responsible for preparing financial statements and non-financial performance information that:
»» comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
»» fairly reflect the EPA’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows; and
»» fairly reflect its service performance and impacts.
The Board is also responsible for such internal control as is determined necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements and non-financial performance information that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. The Board is also responsible for the publication of the financial statements and non-financial performance information,
whether in printed or electronic form.
The Board’s responsibilities arise from the Crown Entities Act 2004.
Responsibilities of the Auditor
We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and non-financial performance
information and reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. Our responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit
Act 2001 and the Crown Entities Act 2004.
Independence
When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, which incorporate the
independence requirements of the External Reporting Board.
Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the EPA.

Robert Cox
Audit New Zealand
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Wellington, New Zealand
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Appendices

Appendix 1
New organism decisions made by Institutional Biological
Safety Committees (IBSCs) under delegated authority during
2012-13 as at 30 June 2013
IBSCs in academic and research institutions and within industry are authorised to undertake decision-making roles for
applications relating to low-risk GM organisms in containment.
Table 12: New organism decisions made by IBSCs under delegated authority for 2012-13

Total
decisions
notified
2012-13

New applications
including
biological
material derived
from native flora/
fauna

New applications
including
biological
material derived
from Māori DNA

Total
decisions
notified
2011-12

GMO development in containment – rapid
assessment

2

0

0

3

GMO import into containment – rapid
assessment

0

N/A

N/A

0

Minor or technical amendments

8

N/A

N/A

1

10

0

0

4

GMO development in containment – rapid
assessment

4

0

0

3

GMO import into containment – rapid
assessment

2

0

0

0

Minor or technical amendments

2

N/A

N/A

5

Sub total

8

0

0

8

GMO development in containment – rapid
assessment

5

0

0

4

GMO import into containment – rapid
assessment

3

0

0

4

Minor or technical amendments

5

N/A

N/A

5

13

0

0

13

GMO development in containment – rapid
assessment

5

0

0

4

GMO import into containment – rapid
assessment

5

0

0

9

Minor or technical amendments

1

N/A

N/A

1

Sub total

11

0

0

14

TOTAL

42

0

0

39

IBSC Application type

Lincoln University

Sub total
Massey University

University of Auckland

Sub total
University of Otago
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Appendix 2
Incidents and inquiries during 2012-13
Incidents involving new organisms and hazardous substances are defined as events that may cause adverse effects to human
health and safety or to the environment, and include instances of non-compliance. The data on incidents collected by the EPA
comes from enforcement agencies or the New Zealand Fire Service (NZFS), or are identified through media monitoring.
The EPA monitors new organism and hazardous substance incidents in order to:
»» determine the adequacy of the controls placed on approved organisms and substances
»» assess that the HSNO Act is effective in preventing harm to human health and the environment.
Incident levels
Incidents are categorised based on the severity of the effect that occurs, taking into account the nature and particular
circumstances of the incident. There are five levels of incidents: Level 1 (minimal), Level 2 (minor), Level 3 (moderate),
Level 4 (major), and Level 5 (massive).
A Level 1 incident is one that results in little discernible effect on people or the environment, minor effect on property or
some social disruption. The HSNO controls on the organisms or substances involved are considered to be adequate. A Level
5 incident is one that results in major damage to property, communities and the ecosystem, including species loss, multiple
deaths and significant economic effects; substantial system and/or HSNO control failure is likely.
New organism incidents and inquiries during 2012-13
There were 34 incidents involving new organisms, including genetically modified organisms (GMOs), recorded in 2012-13,
compared with 33 for the previous financial year, and 24 in 2010-11. All of the incidents were categorised as Level 2. No
incidents occurred at Levels 1, 3, 4 or 5.
Thirty-one incidents occurred in containment facilities. Twenty-four incidents occurred at zoos and five incidents involved
GMOs. Seventeen incidents resulted in the release from containment of a new organism, involving 16 zoo animals and one
GMO. In all incidents, the new organisms were successfully re-contained.
Five incidents involving zoo animals resulted in adverse effects on people, with one member of the public and four zoo
keepers receiving minor injuries. There were no adverse effects on the environment.
Three incidents occurred outside of containment. One concerned the smuggling into the country of a scorpion, which was
subsequently destroyed. In the second incident, viable soybeans were found in a bulk shipment of soybean stock food pellets
imported from Argentina. As most soybean produced in Argentina is genetically modified, the shipment was treated to render
any product non-viable. With the final incident an investigation is continuing into the possible illegal import of tropical plants.
None of the incidents resulted in adverse effects to the environment or the health and safety of the public. There were no
inquiries undertaken during 2012-13. More detailed information on the incidents reported can be found on our website by
searching the term ‘new organism incidents‘.
Hazardous substance incidents and inquiries during 2012-13
The number of incidents reported has been affected by the firefighters’ strike during the 2011-12 year, which reduced the
reporting of minor incidents in that year. In 2010-11, 1,416 incidents were reported to ERMA, 98% of which were Level 1 incidents.
There were 1,476 (2011-12: 606) incidents involving hazardous substances reported to the EPA during the 2012-13 year, of
which more than 98% (2011-12: 96%) were categorised as Level 1. The 12 (2011-12: 11) incidents categorised as Level 3 (no
incidents at Levels 4 or 5) were all reviewed. The proportion of incidents associated with the most common types and locations of
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incidents and the hazardous substances most commonly associated with these incidents is comparable to previous years. In summary:
»» the majority of incidents resulted from spills or leakage
»» most incidents occurred in public places or workplaces
»» the most common substances associated with the incidents were fireworks, petrol, hydrocarbon gases (including LPG) and diesel.
More detailed information on the incidents reported can be found on our website by searching the term ‘hazardous substances
incidents’.
Some common substances associated with incidents
Number

Effects
on people

Effects on the
Environment

Fireworks

307

2

258

Petrol

289

3

92

Hydrocarbon gases incl. NOS (other than LPG)

233

4

102

LPG

148

9

39

Diesel

97

1

50

Liquid Hydrocarbons incl. NOS (other than Petrol and Diesel)

54

0

13

Chlorine

33

2

21

Acids

22

2

6

Ammonia

21

3

8

Agrichemicals

13

5

3

Substance

Incident types
Types of incidents

number

PERCENT

Spill/leakages

930

63%

Fires

496

34%

Other

30

2%

Explosions

17

1%

Spray drift

3

<1%

1,476

100

number

PERCENT

Public

685

46%

Work

491

33%

Motor vehicle

375

25%

Private dwelling/property

309

21%

Total

50%

100%

50%

100%

Location of incidents
Location

Other

88

6%

Train

10

0.1%

Aircraft

4

<0.1%

Ship

1

<0.1%

Total

1,963 Total is greater thAN total incidents (1,476) due to incidents
occurring in more than one type of location.
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Appendix 3
Environmental user charges
The EPA Board may, under the HSNO Act, consider imposing an environmental user charge as an alternative to or in addition
to controls in granting an approval for a hazardous substance. The EPA Board did not consider imposing environmental user
charges in the 2012-13 year. With all approvals granted to date, it was considered that the use of controls is the most effective
means of managing the risks throughout the lifecycles of the substances approved.

Appendix 4
Legislation fully or partly administered by the EPA as at
30 June 2013
»» Imports and Exports (Restrictions) Act 1988 and Prohibition Order (No 2) 2004
»» Resource Management Act 1991
»» Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996
»» Ozone Layer Protection Act 1996
»» Climate Change Response Act 2002
»» Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf (Environmental Effects) Act 2012
The EPA is classified as a Crown Agent under the Crown Entities Act 2004. This means that it is required to give effect to
Government policy relating to its functions and objectives, if so directed.
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Appendix 5
Glossary
Days

Working days, excluding weekends and public holidays and, for purposes of applications made under
Part 5 of the HSNO Act, the period between 20 December and 15 January each year.

DoL

Department of Labour (now Labour Group, Ministry for Business, Innovation and Employment).

EEZ

Exclusive Economic Zone, the region between 12 and 200 nautical miles from the coastline. Can also
refer to the Exclusive Economic Zone and Continental Shelf (Environmental Effects) Act 2012.

Emissions Ruling

A person may apply to the EPA for an emissions ruling about whether an activity falls within Schedules
3 or 4 of the Climate Change Response Act, whether a person is a participant, whether data and/or
information has been gathered correctly, whether the correct methodology for calculating emissions
or removals has been used, and/or whether the correct data or information has been used in the
verification process.

ERMA

The Environmental Risk Management Authority, now the EPA.

ETS

The Emissions Trading Scheme.

ESR

Institute of Environmental Science and Research.

GMO

Genetically modified organism. Any organism in which the genetic material has been modified by in
vitro techniques.

Group Standard

Standard under the HSNO Act for groups of hazardous substances that have a similar nature, are of a
similar type or have similar circumstances of use, for which the risks are effectively managed by one set
of conditions.

Hazardous substance A substance that is explosive, flammable, an oxidiser, toxic, corrosive, or ecotoxic, according to
thresholds set out in various HSNO Act Regulations (section 2 of the HSNO Act).
HCFCs

Hydrochlorofluorocarbon compounds, greenhouse gases sometimes used in eg timber fumigation.

HSNO Act

Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996.

IBSC

Institutional Biological Safety Committees – these act under delegation from the EPA.

LPG

Liquefied petroleum gas.

MAF (MPI)

Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry (now Ministry for Primary Industries).

MBIE

Ministry for Business, Innovation and Employment.

MED (MBIE)

Ministry of Economic Development (now Ministry for Business, Innovation and Employment).

MfE

Ministry for the Environment.

MFAT

Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade.

NZEUR

New Zealand Emission Unit Register, a component of the Emission Trading Scheme.

NZ GAAP

New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice.

NZ IAS

New Zealand International Accounting Standard.

NZ IFRS

New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards.

OECD

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.

POP

Persistent Organic Pollutants.

Responsible Minister

The Minister for the Environment. The Minister for Climate Change Issues is also consulted and
informed of issues relevant to his portfolio.

Unique Emissions
Factors (UEF)

A unique emissions factor allows individual participants in the Scheme to reduce their surrender costs
by adopting new technologies or processes that reduce their emissions. Verifiers for Unique Emissions
Factors: Recognised independent verifiers who provide assurance around the information provided by
participants registered in the ETS when they apply for the use of unique emissions factors.
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